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FoRewoRd

this last year of the Council’s three year term comes to a 
halt with several notable achievements for the national 
Heritage Council (nHC). we are pleased to have continued 
the institution’s legacy of good governance to the extent 
possible. A sixth consecutive unqualified audit report for a 
young institution in a period where a myriad of cautionary 
and regulatory legislation needed to be observed in the 
operations, is a challenge for many public institutions.

Many of us as Council members have learned lessons 
about the depth and richness of our often trivialised 
heritage – lessons that we shall cherish for eternity. 
equally, the organisation in its entirety has  immensely 
benefited from the contributions of the collective wisdom 
of the Council members who unreservedly shared and 
insisted on what they believed is correct. 

the organisational policies that we were able to entrench 
will strengthen the governance of the nHC for many years 
to come. the resources mobilised from external funders 

and, in particular, the national Lotteries distribution 
trust Fund (nLdtF) has set a base and provided donor 
confidence for future investments by other funders who 
are concerned about the lack of funding for heritage in 
south Africa. If it were not for this challenge of funding, 
more work could have been done in the area of knowledge 
production to increase the intellectual material about this 
country’s rich heritage.

Parting ways is for us a sad but proud moment because 
we have become attached to the passion of all the 
stakeholders that we have had to work with over the 
years. However, we remain indebted to advance the 
cause of ensuring that future generations find a legacy 
of their heritage preserved. this calling which ought to 
be a responsibility of every proud south African, we hope 
to retain in our individual capacities. similarly, the nHC is 
encouraged to continue to spur the country into even a 
more buoyant action. 

we wish the new Council members the best time ahead 
in the rather intricate task of steering the organisation to 
greater heights especially with the rising public demand 
for heritage solutions and services. As we pass the baton, 
we also encourage the Management and staff  of the nHC 
to continue the ‘beyond the call of duty’ commitment 
that we had become accustomed to over the years. we 
believe that the Council will receive the much needed and  
undivided cooperation as we have enjoyed from the entire 
staff , the department of Arts and Culture as well as all the 
other stakeholders in the heritage sector.

Prof. Matabole Rocky Ralebipi-simela

Acting Chairperson 

Acting Chairperson
Prof. M. R. Ralebipi - simela
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the humble beginnings of six years ago when the national 
Heritage Council was formed has paid off rewarding dividends 
for the south African heritage sector. the turning point was 
when the first five years were successfully recorded in the in-
stitutions own heritage. this success is owed to the efforts that 
were specifically dedicated to develop organisational systems 
and policies in the formative years. this year under review 
marked the second quinquennium of the nHC where the stra-
tegic pillars were refocused to contribute to advance the man-
date as expressed in the nHC Act of 1999.

the year also marked the change of guard in terms of new 
Council members. Although the formal inauguration happens 
at the beginning of the seventh financial year, it is worth men-
tioning in this report. I am pleased to be afforded an opportu-
nity to work with a Council that is comprised of men and wom-
en of impeccable stature as it was in the past two Councils.

the nHC has made significant strides in mobilising not only the 
general public but strategic stakeholders in the heritage sector 
such as government departments as well as the private sector. 
several stakeholders who were previously never involved or re-
alised their inevitable role in heritage, became instant friends 
of the sector either directly or indirectly. while in the majority 
of cases, as often expected, the benefits were social – this turn-

ing point’s marker was also the economic resource mobilisa-
tion that contributed by external stakeholders.

Public mobilisation through conferences was scaled down but 
the interaction with our stakeholders was retained at the same 
level. More time was dedicated to other equivalent method-
ologies of public consultation especially on subjects that were 
recurring. Public education was part of the process of interact-
ing with the public throughout.

Funding of innovative community heritage projects was again 
one of the strongest focal points. A critical analysis of the issue 
of funding in the sector was for a long time in arrears. Given 
the suspected need for a massive economic injection into the 
sector in order to unlock economic prospects, a Funding Con-
ference and research has proven that heritage is the one of the 
least funded sectors in south Africa.

the sector was for centuries subjected to draconic laws of 
apartheid that suppressed the exposure, appreciation and 
preservation of African heritage. the identification of policy 
gaps and formulation of frameworks that seek to intervene 
were developed. the policy areas cover issues of critical public 
concern and high impact such as ‘development’, ethics, trans-
formation and Repatriation.

the increased demand for more attention by the heritage 
activists has brought about many challenges for the nHC. 
whilst other demands are obviously related to resources 
some emerging societal needs relate to knowledge, informa-
tion, advice and general support. these have placed immense 
pressure on the nHC to meet the needs that are genuine. the 
increased number of funding requests and daily enquiries has 
had a knock on the operational resources of the nHC including 
the human resource.

I regard this year as one of the most challenging especially be-
cause of having to negotiate an organisational turning point 
that requires a massive injection of resources to enable its 
successful operation. At the same time, I am delighted that to-
gether with a team of committed employees and a supportive 
Council, the organisation was able to turn the corner.

Adv sonwabile Mancotywa
Chief executive officer

oVeRVIew

Adv. sonwabile Mancotywa
Chief executive officer



7NATIONAL HERITAGE COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2010



nAtIonAL HeRItAGe CoUnCIL AnnUAL RePoRt 20108 NATIONAL HERITAGE COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2010

1. the Core Functions of the nHC
As expressed in the Act, the functions of the nHC are:

a) Advise the Minister on: 
national policies on heritage matters, including indigenous knowledge systems, treasures, restitu-
tion and other relevant matters; and 
any other matter concerning heritage which the Minister may from time to time determine; 
b)  Advise the Minister on the allocation of core funding to declared cultural institutions; 
c)  Investigate ways and means of effecting the repatriation of south African heritage   
 objects presently held by foreign governments, public and private institu   
 tions and individuals; 
d)  Make grants to any person, organisation or institution in order to promote and 
 develop national heritage activities and resources; 
e)  Co-ordinate the activities of public institutions involved in heritage management in an  
 integrated manner to ensure optimum use of state resources: 
f )  Monitor and co-ordinate the transformation of the heritage sector, with special empha  
 sis on the development of heritage projects; 
g)  Consult and liaise with relevant stakeholders on heritage matters; 
h)  Generally support, nurture and develop access to institutions and programmes that   
 promote and bring equity to heritage management; 
i)  Promote an awareness of the history of all our peoples, including the history of enslave  
 ment in south Africa; 
j)  Lobby in order to secure funding for heritage management and to create a greater   
 public awareness of the importance of our nation’s heritage; and 
k)  Perform such duties in respect of its objects as the Minister may assign to it.
l) the Council may on its own initiative advise the Minister on any matter concerning   
 heritage.

2. nHC Priorities

the current strategic planning document of the national Heritage Council has the following 
priorities covering 2009 to 2012:
a) to provide the Minister of Arts and Culture with sound policy advice on all national heritage 
matters;
b)    equitable redress and inclusivity; 
c)    enhance the role of Ubuntu in nation building; 
d)    Improve co-ordination and management of the sector; 
e)    Positioning the heritage sector as a significant contributor to socio-economic development; 
f )     Improve resources mobilisation efforts of the nHC;
g)    Public awareness, education and stakeholder relations; 
h)    Institutional development of the national Heritage Council and heritage organisation

PeRFoRMAnCe RePoRt
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PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10

Balance Perspective Scorecard Strategic Focus Area

Primary goal perspective to provide the Minister with policy advice 
Funding and resource mobilisation
Mainstreaming intangible heritage
nation building programs
Leadership through intellectual expertise
Continued support from the department of Arts and Culture and Government
transformation of the sector
Public awareness 
ensure strong corporate image/identity
Coordination of heritage management

stakeholder  Perspective Facilitation and development of Memoranda of Understanding (MoUs) with nHC stakeholders
Recognition for leadership through technical expertise. Reputation for reliability in service delivery.
Leadership in transformation of the heritage sector.
effective coordination of the Heritage sector.
Intergovernmental co-operation

Processes and systems Perspective Increase nHC’s capacity for Planning, Monitoring and evaluation
development and sustenance of world class internal organisational processes and systems
enhanced governance, risk and financial management
Reliable information management systems
Adherence to supply chain management protocol

Learning and Growth Perspective enhance research and information capacity
effective internal  communication
Building a caring and compassionate nHC
ongoing capacity building of nHC staff
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Primary Goal Perspective

The primary goal perspective is addressing the strategic priorities that focuses on the core business of the NHC and are listed below:
a) to provide the Minister of Arts and Culture with sound policy advice on all national heritage matters;
b) equitable redress and inclusivity; 
c) enhance the role of Ubuntu in nation building; 
d) Improve co-ordination and management of the sector; 
e) Positioning the heritage sector as a significant contributor to socio-economic development; 
f ) Improve resources mobilisation efforts of the nHC;
g) Public awareness, education and stakeholder relations. 

PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10
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Table 1 - Primary Goal Perspective

Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

a) Provide the 
Minister with 
policy advice

1. An established nHC  Heritage 
(core business) Portfolio 
Committee which sets policy 
framework

a) Portfolio Committee established 2009/10 - 2011/12 done:  the Heritage Committee had been established and was 
functional.
ongoing: draft policy framework on Repatriation of Heritage 
Resources has been circulated for inputs and comments to Heritage 
Committee. draft policy was also tabled and noted by Council in its 
last meeting held on 20 February 2010.  

2. develop Heritage Policy 
frameworks

a) submission and approval of the  
Heritage transformation Charter

2009/10 done: the draft Heritage transformation Charter has been 
circulated during June and July 2009 of the year under review and 
accordingly endorsed by stakeholders.
ongoing: nHC submitted a formal communication for the handover 
of the draft Charter to the dAC, and dAC has not yet confirmed a 
date for the handover.    Handover is now planned september 2010 
and/or as soon thereafter as it may be so handed over.

b) Policy on repatriation of heritage 2009/10 ongoing: After consolidation of inputs from the Council and 
Reference Group, a revised draft policy framework was presented 
at a stakeholder workshop held in Midrand on 11 February 2010. 
Further inputs and comments from the workshop have been 
consolidated and finalization of the draft policy Framework is 
expected to happen on or before the end of the second quarter of 
the 2010/13 financial year. 

c) Policy on Public Access to 
Heritage Institutions

2009/10 – 2010/11 done: Research database has been completed and used for the 
distribution of Access to Heritage Resources Questionnaires. 
Questionnaires have been distributed and followed up with 
personal calls to elicit responses. 194 responses were received and 
captured.

done: Research project regarding the feasibility of a heritage levy as 
well as alternative revenue raising proposals have been completed 
and presented to nHC on 5 February 2010. 

In Progress: Broader research aspects of draft policy on Access 
would be pursued in the 2010/11 financial year.

PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

d) development of standards and 
codes of ethics for heritage 
practitioners

2009/10 – 2010/11 ongoing:  Research and further consultations with stakeholders has 
began and will continue in the 2010/11 financial year. 

e) national framework for 
harmonizing heritage 
conservation and development

2009/10 – 2010/11 done: Preliminary research report and discussion document have 
been completed in January and February 2010 respectively. the 
discussion document has been present for commentary at an expert 
focus group meeting held on 16 March 2010 and revised according 
to inputs.
In Progress: Consultative workshop for broad stakeholder 
engagement took place on 04 May 2010 and a report therefrom 
used to inform the further development of the draft policy 
framework document.

3. Policy proposals submitted to 
the Heritage (core business) 
Portfolio Committee

a) submission of policy proposals to 
the Minister for approval.

2010/11 In Progress: Policy proposals will upon completion be submitted 
to the Heritage Committee that will be constituted after the 
appointment of the new Council in the financial year 2010-2011. to 
this end, internal work on different draft policy frameworks such as 
heritage levy, repatriation of heritage and heritage development is 
underway.

4. Policy positions/guidelines for 
presentation to the Minister& 
dAC.

a) Comprehensive proposal on the 
restructuring of the heritage 
sector with specific emphasis to:
·	 Review of all heritage related 

legislation
·	 Implementation of the 

heritage transformation 
charter

·	 Clarification of roles 
amongst key players dAC, 
nHC, institutions, etc

·	 Liberation route programme
·	 Leadership of the sector

2010/11 – 2011/12 ·	 done: nHC submitted inputs to dAC draft Policy Framework 
on Living Heritage.

·	 In Progress: Implementation of the Heritage Charter is subject 
to formal approval by the dAC.

·	 In Progress: subject to dAC Policy Review process. nHC 
submitted inputs and attended a policy review workshop 
organised by the dAC held on 12 March 2010 at its offices.

·	  Cabinet Memo was resubmitted as per Minister’s request. 
·	 In Progress: Continuous engagement with the sector 

continued during the year under review. 

PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

b) Funding and 
resource 
mobilization

1. Reviewed nHC Funding 
Policy

a) An updated Funding Policy 2009/10 delayed: Review of the Funding Policy could not take place during 
the year under review owing to the reprioritization of focus on 
Funding Impact assessment done during June and July 2009.
In progress: Presentation of the Review on the Funding Policy would 
be made at the first sitting of the new Council once appointed and 
only then will it be printed.

2. developed Resource 
Mobilization strategy

a) Conduct needs assessment for 
funds and resources.

2009/10 done:  A draft nHC Resource Mobilization strategy is in place and  
awaits tabling before the following fora:

a) Management eXCo Meeting during the first 
quarter of the 2010/11 financial year.

b) new Council of the nHC in their first sitting 
once appointed. 

In progress: the Funding Impact study will inform further the nHC 
Resource Mobilization strategy once adopted by the relevant 
structures before end of the 2nd quarter of the 2010/2011 financial 
year.

b) engage key stakeholders for input 2009/10 not done.  the Resource Mobilization strategy is still in its draft 
format and would require tabling at the relevant internal structures 
first for endorsement.

c) Produce strategy for resource 
mobilization

2009/10 In progress:  A draft Resource Mobilization strategy is in place and 
will be tabled at the Management eXCo for ratification before end 
of 1st quarter of 2010-2011.  

3. Mobilized funds and 
resources for targeted 
strategic programmes and 
projects

a) develop business proposals 2009/10 done: Business case proposal was submitted to the Minister of Arts 
& Culture with the Funding summit Report in december 2009.

  

b) Identify and approach the 
funders/sponsors 

2009/10 not done: no approaches were done in this year under review. 
engagements with funding bodies did not take place in this quarter 
but plans are in place to engage identified bodies in the 1st quarter 
of 2010-2011 financial year.

In progress: Approaches are being scheduled with some funders 
to meet and discuss areas of funding for the sector in 1st quarter of 
2010/2011.

PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

c) secure funds and resources 2009/10 not done: no funds were secured in the year under review.

o An established Funding 
Forum to coordinate sector 
funding

a) Consultation with identified 
funding bodies for constitution of 
a funding forum

2009/10 done: A framework to guide the formation of the Funders’ Forum 
was completed in december 2009. 

In progress: Consultation with identified bodies will take place in the 
2nd quarter of 2010-2011

b) developed terms of reference for 
the funding forum

2009/10 not done: no terms of Reference are in place in the year under 
review.

In progress: once the Funders’ Forum is constituted terms of 
reference will be developed and consultations with stakeholders 
and focus groups would take place in the 3rd quarter of 2010-2011 
for endorsement.

c) Periodic review of the functioning 
of the funding forum 

2009/10 not done: no review of the functioning of the Funding Forum took 
place in the year under review. Reviews will take place in the 4th 
quarter after the Funder’s Forum would have been established.

o An impact study report on 
sector funding

a) Conduct assessment and trends 
on funding of the sector

2009/10 done: 1st draft Impact survey was presented in February and 
reviewed in March 2010.

b) Produce an impact study report 2009/10-2011/12 Final report not in place yet:  the final Impact study survey is still 
in the draft format but has been reviewed. the Final Impact study 
report would be produced in the 1st quarter of 2010/2011 financial 
year.

PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

c) Mainstreaming 
intangible 
heritage

1. developed framework on 
integration of Intangible 
Heritage into Heritage 
Resource Management

a) Conducting needs assessment 2009/10-2011/12 Function taken over by dAC and nHC requested not to pursue it.

b) A report on the needs assessment 2009/10-2011/12 subject to the completion of dAC policy process. to commence 
after completion and ratification of the national policy on Intangible 
Heritage by dAC.

2. Implementation of national 
Policy on Intangible Heritage. 
(dAC driven Process)

a) Conduct advocacy workshops 2009/10-2011/12 dAC Policy area. to commence after the completion and ratification 
of the national policy on Intangible Heritage by dAC. 

b) engaging stakeholders 2009/10-2011/12 dAC Policy area. to commence after the completion and ratification 
of the national policy on Intangible Heritage by dAC.

c) Monitor and evaluate 
implementation 

2009/10-2011/12 dAC Policy area. to commence after the completion and ratification 
of the national policy on Intangible Heritage by dAC.

3. Implementation of UnesCo 
Convention on safeguarding 
of Intangible Heritage (Upon 
finalization of ratification)

a) Conduct advocacy workshops 2010/11-2011/12 subject to ratification of UnesCo ICH policy by south Africa (dAC).

b) engaging stakeholders 2011/12 subject to ratification of UnesCo ICH policy by south Africa (dAC).

c) Monitor and evaluate 
implementation

2011/12 subject to ratification of UnesCo ICH policy by south Africa (dAC). 

PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

4.  Integration of Intangible 
Heritage into education
 sector, including oral history 
programme

a) engaging stakeholders 2010/11 subject to completion and ratification of national Policy Framework 
on ICH and UnesCo ICH policy by south Africa (dAC).

b) Promotion and incorporation  
of Intangible Heritage  into the 
education sector

2010/11 subject to completion and ratification of national Policy Framework 
on ICH and    UnesCo ICH policy by south Africa (dAC).

d) nation building 
programs

1. Abuntu Awards a) Annual Ubuntu Awards 2009/10-2011/12 done: A report and audio-visual material have been produced and 
disseminated to stakeholders. 

2. Increased awareness and 
embracing of Ubuntu values

a)  establishment of national 
Advisory Committee on Ubuntu

2009/10 done: the Advisory Committee had been established and was 
functional. Following the appointment of the national Advisory 
Panel for the period 2007 – 2010 members thereof took part in the 
pre-imbizo and Imbizo events during september and october 2009. 
on 27th november 2009, members of Advisory Committee convened 
a meeting to evaluate the 2009 Ubuntu Programme and also plan 
strategically for the 2010 – 2011 financial year. 

b)  Hosting of Annual national 
Imbizo on Ubuntu

2009/10-2011/12 done:  Hosted the annual national Ubuntu Imbizo and Awards 
ceremony on 1st october 2009. the following build-up activities 
preceded the Ubuntu Imbizo and Awards ceremony: 
-Media Conference – 31 August 2009

-Ubuntu dialogues (workshop) – 16 september 2009

-Ubuntu in Action Community Visits – 17 september 2009

A report has been produced and disseminated.

c)  Integration of Ubuntu principles 
and values into school’s 
curriculum

2010/11 In Progress:  engagement with the doe was done during the year 
under review and an MoU would be concluded in the 2010/11 
financial year after which further discussions on the integration 
of Ubuntu principles and values in schools curriculum will also be 
pursued.

PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

3. development of policy 
framework on the integration 
of Ubuntu into public policy

a) An investigation of policy 
implications of Ubuntu values

2010/11-2011/12 In Progress: Preliminary and exploratory research commenced in the 
year under review and would proceed in the 2010/11 financial year. 

b) Identification of public policies 
with a potential of integrating 
Ubuntu

2010/11-2011/12  In Progress:  Preliminary research has started during the previous 
and current quarter under review. 

c) Policy development and 
integration 

2010/11-2011/12 In Progress:  Preliminary research started during the previous and 
continued during the current year under review. 

4. development of Liberation 
Heritage Route

a) Conduct research and feasibility 
study

2009/10-2011/12 done:  the service provider was appointed to conduct the national 
Research on the nLHR.  Commencement of the national Research 
Programme on the national Liberation Heritage Route prioritizing 
Premium sites for world Heritage site Inscription began in 
december 2009. Business Plan on the world Heritage site inscription 
will be finalized in the second quarter of the 2010/11 financial year.
done: Preliminary results of the research work have been submitted 
to nHC by the service provider.

b) development of Business Case 2009/10-2011/12 done: national Business Case on the Liberation Heritage Route has 
been completed and submitted to the nHC for approval during 
october 2009.

done:  the nLHR received extensive media coverage during the 
20th Anniversary of the release of nelson Mandela during 10-11 
February 2010.  this is the implementation of the marketing and 
communications plan as contained in the business plan.

PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

c) stakeholder consultation and 
engagement 

2009/10-2011/12 done: Provincial executive Councils which formally adopted the 
nLHR are Limpopo in october 2009 and Mpumalanga in november 
2009 respectively. the following milestones have also been noted:

·	 An inter-provincial workshop with officials was successfully 
held on 12 March 2010 to foster consensus on the formation of 
Provincial Chapters of the nLHR.

·	 A consultative workshop with Liberation Movements was 
successfully held on 11 March 2010 where decisions were 
taken on future engagement with regards to the nLHR.

·	 A meeting was held with the Johannesburg Metro where a 
formal commitment was made to collaborate with the nHC on 
the nLHR.

·	 Provinces which were consulted are KwaZulu-natal and 
northern Cape; 

In PRoGRess: Municipalities with pending meetings a emngeni, 
Buffalo City and relevant national departments which would be 
prioritized in the 2010/11 financial year.

done:  A synergies joint workshop convened with sedA on cultural 
industries adopted the nLHR.

PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

d) setting of national structures and 
task team

2010/11 Pended: Implementation on hold subject to approval of the 
business case by cabinet and availability of funds.

done:  the Inter-Provincial Meeting on the nLHR agreed on the 
development of Provincial structures and setting up of a national 
steering Committee to co-ordinate the Chapters.

e) Provincial  Launch of the 
Liberation Heritage Route 

2009/10-2011/12 Pended: Launch pending adoption of the LHR and development of 
provincial plans of action.

f ) development and submission 
of  nomination dossier for listing 
of Liberation Route on UnesCo 
world Heritage List

2009/10-2011/12 done And onGoInG: A revised document on premium sites for 
world Heritage site listing was submitted to the national Minister of 
Arts and Culture during the third quarter of the year under review.

the commencement of the dossier is scheduled for the 2010/2011 
financial year.

done:  the post of a world Heritage specialist to lead the nHC team 
on the drafting of the nomination dossier and a successful bid for 
world Heritage site inscription of the nLHR was advertised and 
interviews held during first week of April 2010 and appointment 
would be finalized before end of first quarter of 2010/11. 

5. Implementation Phase of 
Unsung Heroes and Heroines 
Programs

a) Conduct research, interviews and 
documentation of narratives of 
unsung heroes and heroines

2009/10-2011/12 In Progress: Project has been merged with national Liberation 
Heritage Route project. Research commenced in december 2009. 
Preliminary research including archival study and site visits are in 
progress and will still continue during the 2010/11 financial year.
 

b) stakeholder engagement and 
Consultations 

2009/10-2011/12 In Progress: stakeholder engagement and consultations pursued 
during the research process by the research team. Meeting with 
different stakeholders in the provinces will continue during the 
2010/11 financial year.

PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

c) Production of Audio-visual 
documentation 

2009/10-2011/12 In Progress: to be pursued during research process by the recently 
appointed research team.

d) Production of Report/text 
publication

2009/10-2011/12 to be pursued during research process by the recently appointed 
research team.

6. Implementation of 2nd Phase 
of early African Intellectuals 

a)  stakeholder engagement and 
Consultation 

2009/10-2010/11 done: stakeholder engagement and consultations with experts 
completed. 

b) Conduct research and 
documentation 

2009/10-2010/11 done: data gathering and analysis completed.

c) Production of Report/text 
publication

2009/10-2010/11 In Progress: Final write-up of report in progress. 

7. Implementation of sol Plaatjie 
Heritage Project

d) stakeholder engagement 2009/10- 2010/11 done: stakeholder engagement and consultations completed.

a) Conduct research and 
documentation

2009/10- 2010/11 done: data gathering and analysis completed

b) Production of report and 
publication

2009/10- 2010/11 In Progress: Final write-up of report in progress and would be 
completed in the 2010/11 financial year.

PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

d) transformation of 
the sector

1. developed Heritage 
transformation Charter

a) Presentation of the Charter and 
Implementation Plan to  Minister 
and Cabinet

2009/10
done:  draft Charter was submitted to the Minister of Arts and 
Culture and cabinet memo to be submitted to the minister on a date 
to be confirmed by the Ministry during the 2010/11 financial year.

b) Presentation of the Charter and 
Implementation Plan to Heritage 
stakeholders

2009/10
done: Charter has been circulated to the stakeholders for 
endorsement during June-August 2009. signed endorsement forms 
received and filed.

2. Implemented transformation 
Charter

a) dissemination and promotion of 
the transformation Charter

2010/11-2011/12
subject to approval and endorsement of transformation Charter by 
dAC.

b) Roll out implementation 
programmes

2010/11-2011/12
subject to approval and endorsement of transformation Charter by 
dAC.

c) development of an incentive 
programme for implementation

2010/11-2011/12
subject to approval and endorsement of transformation Charter by 
dAC.

3. Monitoring and evaluation

a) Monitoring and evaluation of the 
transformation Charter

2011/12
subject to approval of transformation Charter by dAC for official use 
and implementation.

b) Produce an implementation 
report regularly

2011/12
subject to approval of transformation Charter by dAC for official use 
and implementation.

e) Public awareness 
and education

1. Public relations and advocacy 
activities

a) A stakeholder framework that 
identify stakeholders and their 
potential impact 

2009/10 done: Key stakeholders have been identified and engaged.

b)  Conduct a national road show 
to provincial stakeholders for 
advocacy

2009/10
done: Public relations/media relations support for funding 
workshops in provinces was provided.
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

c) Production and circulation of a 
bi-annual heritage magazine

2009/10 stopped: the process was staled due to lack of credible proposals 
that were received during the bid process. Production of the 
Magazine was ultimately discontinued.

d) Coordinated exhibitions at 
national events

2009/10-2011/12 done: All exhibitions conducted in the last quarter as per schedule.

e) Host stakeholders at a national 
music festival

2009/10 done: stakeholders hosted on the first week of April 2010 in Cape 
town.

2. schools’ outreach and 
heritage project

a) develop stakeholder matrix 2009/10-2011/12 done: stakeholder Matrix conducted and database developed.

b) engage stakeholders done: the following stakeholders have been engaged: department 
of Basic education, MRM, KARA, sAnPARKs, Campus After Hours, 
taung skull Consortium planning for the 2010 programmes.

c) Research project for schools 2009/10-2011/12 In Progress: Finalizing the concept document.

d) schools competition 2009/10-2011/12 done:  school competition held in Mapungubwe from the 30th nov- 
5th dec 2009. 
done: Books for prizes have been bought and delivered by exclusive 
Books.

e) Produce report and publications 2009/10-2011/12 done: A report was compiled in december 2009. 
on schedule: Learners presentations to be edited later to be 
converted into a brochure in the 1st quarter of the 2010/11 financial 
year.
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

3. development of a resource 
centre

a) stakeholder engagement 2009/10-2011/12
done: engagement with sABInet to conduct training on the oCLC. 
training scheduled is scheduled for the first quarter of 2010/11.

b) staff training 2009/10-2011/12
done: Resource center staff trained in sABInet and Library systems. 
Anticipated further training would continue during the 2010/11 
financial year.

c) Infrastructure development 2009/10-2011/12
done: Purchase of books and archival material done and the recent 
collection loaded in the resource database (excel Format). 
 

d) development of policies for library 
use

2009/10-2011/12
In Progress: draft policy for internal and external   lending, loaning 
and procedures developed. the draft policy circulated for further 
inputs to nHC management.

4. distribution of 2nd volume 
directory on heritage 
resources

e) engage service a provider 2009/10 – 2011/12
In Progress: service provider engaged. Monthly meetings 
conducted.

f ) Conduct research 2009/10 – 2011/12

In Progress: Research pursued by the appointed service provider. 
Phase 1 of the project Has been submitted by end of March 2010. 
nHC has made inputs and comments to the draft report.

g) distribution of directory 2009/10 – 2011/12

In Progress: Continuous distribution of 1st Volume of Heritage 
directory made in conferences, heritage indabas, meetings, 
outreach camps, etc. 2nd Volume will be circulated subject to 
finalization.

5. developed media strategy

a) Create partnerships with 
the media on strategic nHC 
programmes

2009/10-2011/12
done: Partnership with the sABC radio and television on the Ubuntu 
Campaign was entered into and coordinated in october 2010. 

b) Partner with the media on 
unsolicited heritage campaigns 
initiated by media houses

2009/10-2011/12
done: Completed during the 2nd Quarter. A special feature was 
placed in an Independent newspaper during the heritage month in 
september 2009.
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Strategic 
Objective

Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, 
and strategic interventions

6. Maintain functioning of the  
Heritage Communicators 
Forum

a) Produce a joint communication 
programme

2009/10 Re-prioritised to commence in the new financial year if financial 
resources allow.

b) Review the functioning of the 
forum

2009/10-2011/12 would be implemented in the next financial year if financial 
resources allow and the programme proceeds.

f ) ensure strong 
corporate image/
identity

1. developed brand collateral a) Produced and distributed Above 
the Line and Below the Low 
branding: Brochures, website, 
Adverts, Business cards, Corporate 
stationery, gifts, diary.

2009/10-2011/12 done: Produced corporate diaries and process to distribute to the 
stakeholders continued in the first quarter of the 2010/11 financial 
year.

2. developed advertising plan a) secure media space for priority 
nHC programmes and heritage 
month 

2009/10-2011/12 done: Placed recruitment adverts in newspapers.

3. developed communication 
strategy

a)  Review a communication 
strategy for the nHC approval and 
implementation

2009/10-2011/12 done: Presented and accepted by Management during the 2nd 
quarter of the year under review.

4. Conducted brand audit

a) Assess the nHC brand recognition 
and affinity

2009/10 done: terms of reference completed.
ongoing:  Interviews of the audit would happen in the 1st quarter of 
the 2010/11 financial year.

b) nHC 5th birthday/anniversary 
branding with all major programs 
and projects, e.g. annual report, 
heritage month celebrations

2009/10 Completed: In the 2nd Quarter of the year under review.
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1.1 Stakeholder Perspective

the stakeholder service perspective addresses two of the strategic priorities that largely focus on the core business of the nHC and are listed below: 
a) Improve co-ordination and management of the sector; 
b) Public awareness, education and stakeholder relations. 

Table 2 - Stakeholder Perspective

Strategic Objective Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, and 
strategic interventions

a) Facilitation and 
development of 
memoranda of 
understanding 
(MoUs) with nHC 
stakeholders

1. strengthened and 
formalized relations with 
stakeholders

a) developed stakeholder matrix 2009/10-2011/12
done: Completed in the last quarter of the financial year and latest update 
of Heritage stakeholder Matrix would be done in the first quarter of the 
2010/11 financial year.

b) developed MoUs on common 
areas of mutual interest

2009/10-2011/12

done:   signed contracts and MoU in place. Zindala Zombili, MKVA, 
Africa Village, Methodist Church, Arise Media, transkei Rugby Union, 
Mpondomise Royal Council, st thomas, and Isigodlo Community 
Movement.

c) evaluated effectiveness of MoUs 2009/10-2011/12
In Progress: Comprehensive review to be done in the 2010/2011 financial 
year. 

b) Intergovernmental 
co-operation

1. developed Partnerships 
based on cooperative 
governance with 
stakeholders e.g. national 
House of traditional 
Leaders, department 
education and etc.

a) Formalized engagements 
through MoUs and MoAs

2009/10-2011/12 In Progress: draft MoUs have been circulated for inputs by national House 
of traditional Leaders and dept of Basic education. 
done: the nHC signed MoUs with Moral Regeneration Movement and 
sAnParks.
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Strategic Objective Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, and 
strategic interventions

2. Advise on the 2010 soccer 
world cup heritage legacy

b) Clearly identified implementing 
and policy stakeholders

2009/10-2011/12 dAC is the 2010 project coordinator. 

c) Advisory guidelines 2009/10-2011/12
Provided advice on Heritage issues to the ministerial task team between 
september 2009 and december 2009.

d) Liaise with stakeholders and offer 
heritage advise

2009/10-2011/12

Provided advice on Heritage issues to the ministerial task team and 
facilitate meeting with the Lottery in november 2009. nHC also fostered a 
partnership with tsa Matsa on the dinaledi tsa Football project with focus 
specifically on 2010 and a book was launched at the national Library of 
south Africa on 05 May 2010.

c) Coordination of 
heritage management

1. An effective management 
and coordination at all levels 
across the sector. 

a) Coordinated meetings of forums:
Ceos and directors, Funding, 
Communication, Heritage 
Practitioners

2009/10-2011/12 done: Meeting was held in the first quarter of year under review. 

b) An implemented coordination 
plan, common programmes of 
forums.

2009/10-2011/12 Pending: to be developed in the next financial year.

2. An integrated heritage 
programme into local 
government’s Integrated 
development Plans (IdPs)

a) engagement and consultation 
with local government

2009/10-2011/12 In Progress: Continuous engagements with the dept of Cooperative 
Governance and traditional Affairs.

b) An implemented coordination 
plan, common programmes of 
forums.

2009/10-2011/12 In Progress: subject to signing of the MoU. 
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1.1 Systems and Processes Perspective
a) the systems and processes perspective addresses the strategic priority that focuses mainly on the support business of the nHC and is:  
b) Institutional development of the national Heritage Council and heritage organisations

Table 3 - Systems and Process Perspective

Strategic Objective Strategic Outcome Service delivery 
indicator

Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, and 
strategic interventions

a) Increase nHC’s 
capacity for 
Planning, 
Monitoring and 
evaluation

1. A governance 
monitoring and 
evaluation framework 
of the nHC (to 
accommodate, 
quarterly and annual 
reviews by the 
Council).

a) Planning, 
monitoring and 
evaluation annual 
calendar

2009/10-2011/12 An annual calendar for the year under review in respect of Council and all Council 
Committees was approved by Council at its  meeting held on 20/21 February 
2009. Listed below are Committee and Council Meetings held in the year under 
review:

CoUnCIL MeetInGs HeLd As FoLLows:
1. 20 / 21 Feb 2009
2. 30 May 2009 - Approval may 2010
3. 15 Aug 2009 – no meeting held
4. 21 nov 2009
5. 19 / 20 February 2010

AUdIt CoMMIttee MeetInGs
1.       22 May 2009
2.       31 July 2009
3.       21 August 2009 (special Meeting)
4.       22 september 2009 (special Meeting)
5.       19 october 2009
6.       10 February 2010

CoRPoRAte seRVICes CoMMIttee:
1.        29 August 2009
2.        08 February 2009

HeRItAGe CoMMIttee MeetInGs:

1.        05 August 2009

2.        04 november 2009I
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Strategic Objective Strategic Outcome Service delivery 
indicator

Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, and 
strategic interventions

InteRnAtIonAL ReLAtIons CoMMIttee:

1. 05 August 2009

2. 04 november 2009

At least 3 Management meetings were held during the quarter under review.

 An annual calendar for Council and all Council Committees was done, tabled and 
approved by Council in the meeting held 20/21 February 2009.
All Council Committees have had at least two meetings this year as planned. the 
2nd   Council meeting in 2009 was held on the 21 november as scheduled whilst 
the last Council meeting for year 2009/2010 is scheduled for the 19 & 20 February 
2009.
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Strategic Objective Strategic Outcome Service delivery 
indicator

Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, and 
strategic interventions

b) Quarterly 
management 
meetings

2009/10-2011/12

Management meetings were held during the year under review on the following 
dates:

a. 12/02/09

b. 31/03/09

c. 14/05/09

d. 01/07/09

e. 28/07/09

f. 07/10/09

g. 09/02/10

h. 25/03/10

i. 16/04/10
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Strategic Objective Strategic Outcome Service delivery 
indicator

Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, and 
strategic interventions

c) Quarterly Council 
meetings

2009/10-2011/12 the 1st Council Meeting was held on 20 & 21 February 2009 to consider and 
approve the nHC MteF strategic Plan 2009 -2012 and Annual Meeting Plan. 
2nd Council meeting scheduled for 15 August 2009, could not take place in the 
second quarter due to the prolonged audit but the one for the third quarter 
duly took place on the 21st november 2009 where the Annual Report was 
tabled and accordingly adopted. the last Council Meeting for the financial year 
was held in the fourth quarter as planned. on the 20 February preceded by a 
Council workshop on the 19th February 2010, tabled for Council consideration 
and approval were the nHC strategy for the year 2010- 2013 and reviewed nHC 
policies.

d) Quarterly PFMA 
reports for 
compliance 

2009/10-2011/12 All four quarterly reports, this one inclusive, for the year under review were 
duly submitted to the dAC at the end of each quarter with the accompanying 
Quarterly PFMA compliance questionnaire in line with the provisions of tR 29.3.1.

2. Periodic and 
Annual reports on 
governance, risks, 
financial and human 
resources reporting.

e) developed 
published 
timeframes for 
compliance 
requirements

2009/10-2011/12 Internal audit reports incorporating compliance report and management 
accounts were presented to the Audit Committee and Council meetings held in 
the year under review on the dates alluded to above and approved by Council. 
 

b) development and 
sustenance of 
world class internal 
organisational 
processes and 
systems

3. A business operations 
framework for 
effective units delivery, 
including review of 
policies and processes   

f ) Communicated 
planning and 
process review 
mechanism 

2009/10-2011/12 A framework for business and operational plans derived from the strategic Plan 
2009-2012 against which performance is reported on a quarterly basis is in place 
and continues to be used. 
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Strategic Objective Strategic Outcome Service delivery 
indicator

Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, and 
strategic interventions

c) enhanced 
governance, risk 
and financial 
management

4. sound financial 
policies and 
procedures.

a) develop, implement 
policies, and ensure 
compliance and/or 
adherence.

2009/10-2011/12 the institution has strengthened internal control through development and 
implementation of policies and procedures. Financial policies and procedures 
exist within the organization and are being implemented accordingly. 

during the 4th quarter of 2009/10 financial year an internal policy review process 
was undertaken to reassess the current financial policies and procedures in order 
to align to legislative requirements and best practice. the following policies were 
reviewed, amended and approved by Council on 20 February 2010:

1. Assets Management Policy
2. Control of Gifts, donations and sponsorship
3. Control of Losses
4. Investment Policy
5. Performance Information Policy

   6.       supply Chain Management (new policy, replaced the Procurement Policy)    
             Financial policies exist within the organisation and are being    
             implemented.

during the quarter under review the policy on Assets Management was reviewed 
and amendments were endorsed by the audit committee on 19th october 2009 
and approved by Council on the 21st of november 2009.

Review of all other policies has been done during January 2010 and approval the 
relevant Committees and Council during the 4th quarter.

b)  Review, monitor 
and implement 
risk management 
strategies

2009/10-2011/12 Risk Management strategy, Risk Assessment and Management Plan, and the 
Fraud Prevention Plan documents were developed in september 2009 and 
endorsed by the Audit Committee on 10 February 2010.

5. Proper planning and 
budgeting

a) develop and 
implementing 
materiality and 
significance 
framework.

2009/10-2011/12 Materiality and significance framework has been developed in september 2009 
and endorsed by the Audit Committee in its meeting held on 10 February 2010. 
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Strategic Objective Strategic Outcome Service delivery 
indicator

Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, and 
strategic interventions

b) Manage and 
monitor 
performance of 
the budget and 
ensure no over-
expenditure.

2009/10-2011/12 Budget and expenditure is managed regularly. Management accounts are 
prepared and discussed. Budget meetings were held regularly to ensure constant 
monitoring of budget and expenditure. during the 3rd quarter, three (3) budget 
meetings were held on 10, 11 november 2009, and 07 december 2009. In the 4th 
quarter one (1) budget meeting was held on 1 March 2010.

6. Managed expenditure, 
revenue, assets, 
liabilities and salary 
administration

a) Adherence to PFMA 
on reporting such 
as:

-	 Annual reports

-	 Annual 
Financial 
statements

-	 Achievement 
of unqualified 
reports

2009/10-2011/12 Annual Report 2008/09 activities and processes were completed and reported on 
in the 2nd quarter.

For 2009/10, year - end closure procedures and annual report planned schedule 
of activities developed and endorsed by the Audit Committee on 19 october 
2009.

Reliable information 
management systems

1. information system 
that generate 
accurate and reliable 
management reports

a) Produce custom 
designed systems 
that are user 
friendly and able to 
produce reports per 
required formats of 
the organization.

      2009/10-2011/12 done and completed in July 2009. Pastel evolution database has been re-
customised and reconfigured to produce regular and accurate reports on budget 
and expenditure. 

1. Implemented data 
management system.

a) Proper management 
of It assets

2009/10-2011/12 Assets verification of It and other assets is done on a quarterly basis. Verifications 
were done on the following dates:

1st quarter – 21 April 2009

2nd quarter – 19 June 2009

3rd quarter – 14 october 2009

4th quarter – 10 February 2010
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Strategic Objective Strategic Outcome Service delivery 
indicator

Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, challenges, and 
strategic interventions

a) develop, review 
and adhere to 
developed It 
policies.

2009/10-2011/12 new policies i.e. the disaster Recovery Plan (dRP) and Business Continuity Plan 
(BCP), and nHC Back up policies were developed in the 2nd quarter and approved 
by Council on 20 February 2010. existing It policies i.e. Information system Risk 
Policy and Information technology Policy were reviewed and amended in January 
2010 to be in line with legislation and best practice. Amended It policies were 
approved by Council on 20 February 2010.

Adherence to supply 
chain management 
protocol

1. effective provision 
of PFMA, supply 
Chain Management 
Framework, PPPFA  
and other relevant 
legislation and 
regulations

a) Implemented policies 
and procedures, 
delegation of functions 
and threshold

2009/10-2011/12 Policies and procedures are being implemented, compliance is enforced and 
cases of non compliance are reported to Ceo and discussed by management at 
all times. 

new supply Chain Policy and Procedures aligned to the PPPFA and supply 
Chain Management Framework drafted in october 2009 to replace the nHC 
Procurement Policy, approved by Council on 20 February 2010.
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1.4 Learning and Growth Perspective

the learning and growth perspective addresses the strategic priority that focus on the support function of the nHC: 

a) Institutional development of the national Heritage Council and heritage organisations

table 4 - Learning and Growth Perspective

Strategic Objective Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, 
challenges, and strategic interventions

a) effective internal 
communication

1. developed internal 
communications policy framework

Consulted framework at employee 
forum and management levels

2009/10-2011/12 Done: the Constitution of the forum has 
been finalized and signed off by the Ceo for 
implementation. 

PeRFoRMAnCe InFoRMAtIon 2009/10

a) Building a caring and 
compassionate nHC

1. established employee Forum to 
recommend policy areas and 
content

a) Constituted employee forum 2009/10-2011/12  Done. employee Forum constituted in June 2009 
and met monthly during the year under review. 

2. Regular staff meetings convened 
between employees/Management 

a) Calendar meeting schedule for 
units

2009/10-2011/12  Heritage unit met once every month in the year 
under review. 

3. employee satisfaction  suggestion box a) A developed communication 
framework and structure of 
questionnaire

2009/10-2011/12   development of the suggestion box mechanism 
finalized and completed (March 2010). the box to 
be mounted to the wall and be in use from the 1st 
in quarter of 2010/11 financial year.



35NATIONAL HERITAGE COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2010

4. HR policies and procedures developed and reviewed HR policies 
and procedures

2009/2010 a) the following new HR Policies were developed 
and approved:

 Internship Policy (August 2009)

 employee Health and safety policy (August 2009)

 employee wellness Policy (August 2009)

b) A review process of HR policies was undertaken 
in January 2010 which culminated into the 
following policies being reviewed and new policies 
being developed and benchmarked with best 
practice and aligned to legislation:

 Recruitment and selection (reviewed)

 HR development Policy (reviewed)

 talent, Career, and succession management 

   (new policy)

 employment equity (new policy)

 occupational Health and safety (reviewed)

 sexual Harassment (reviewed)

Strategic Objective Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, 
challenges, and strategic interventions
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 Promotions and transfers policy (new policy)

 Benefits Catalogue (new policy)

 overtime and Acting policy (new policy)

 Labour Relations (reviewed)

 Performance Management system (new policy)

 Remuneration Policy (reviewed)

 Job evaluation Policy (new policy)

 Leave Policy (reviewed)

 travel, subsistence, and Relocation (reviewed)

 employment wellness Policy (reviewed)

 HIV and AIds (reviewed) 

the above  mentioned new and reviewed HR 
policies were approved by Council on 20 February 
2010

a) ongoing capacity building 
of the nHC

1. Conducted skills audit and 
individual employees’ development 
plans 

a) skills audit and workplace skills 
Plans 

2009/10-2011/12 Completed for 2009/10, and submitted to P-seta on 
31 July 2009.

b) Voluntary compliance with 
the skills development and 
employment equity acts

2009/10-2011/12 employment equity Policy developed and approved 
by Council on the 20th of February 2010. draft 
employment equity Plan developed. the plan 
will need to be discussed and endorsed by the 
Management Committee of the nHC and submission 
to the department of Labour  was tentatively 
scheduled for May 2010

Strategic Objective Strategic Outcome Service delivery indicator Timeline Progress against targets for the quarter, 
challenges, and strategic interventions
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this report, informed by the Constitutive Act i.e the na-
tional Heritage Council Act, 1999 (Act no. 11 of 1999) (the 
Act), the Cultural Institutions Act, 1998 (Act 119 of 1998), 
the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999(PFMA), as 
amended, and the dictates of the King I and II Reports, ad-
dresses the conformance of the national Heritage Council 
(nHC) to the relevant statutory and regulatory impera-
tives. the nHC is classified as a schedule 3 Public entity 
which by law is required to prepare and submit Annual 
Financial statements which incorporate a corporate gov-
ernance report.

the Council Members (Councillors) and senior Manage-
ment of the nHC endorse the Code of Corporate Practices 
and Conduct contained in the King I and II Reports on Cor-
porate Governance and the Protocol on Corporate Gover-
nance in the Public sector 2002. By supporting the Code 
the Councillors have recognised the need to conduct the 
nHC’s affairs with integrity and in accordance with gener-
ally accepted corporate practices.

CoRPoRAte stRUCtURe
APPOINTMENT AND COMPOSITION OF THE COUNCIL

the Minister of Arts and Culture and the MeC’s responsible 
for Arts and Culture at provincial levels  are charged with 
the appointment of members in terms of section 5 (1) (a) 
and (b) of the nHC Act respectively. Acting in terms of sec-
tion 5(1)(a), the Minister appointed seven(7) members of 

the public to serve in the Council. of the nine (9) MeC’s, 
only six (Gauteng, eastern Cape, western Cape, Free state 
and north west, Limpopo) had appointed representatives, 
whereas the remaining three( Kwa-Zulu natal, northern 
Cape and Mpumalanga) had not made the required ap-
pointments during the year under review.   

ROLE AND FUNCTION

the Council plays an oversight role to the executive by en-
suring conformity with the strategic objectives or plans, 
monitoring of operational performance and manage-
ment, determination of policy and processes to ensure 
the integrity of Council’s risk management and internal 
control systems.  It is the highest decision – making body 
insofar as approval of policies, annual budget, strategy 
plan and appointment of Ceo are concerned. the role of 
the Chairperson of the Council in conjunction with the 
Council is to determine the nHC’s strategic direction and 
to ensure that governing policies are formulated while the 
Chief executive officer has been delegated the responsi-
bility for the day –to- day management of the affairs of the 
Council in terms of section 11(1)(a)(i) of the nHC Act. the 
Chief executive officer has assumed responsibility for the 
effective management of the nHC and the implementa-
tion of the strategy, policy and Council directives. 

REMUNERATION OF COUNCIL MEMBERS

section 9 of the nHC Act makes provision for the nHC to 
reimburse Councillors for expenses incurred for services 
performed and also pay honoraria only to Councillors 

who are not in the full- time employment of the state. Pay-
ments of honoraria and travel claims for Councillors who 
attended Council meetings have been disclosed in the An-
nual Financial statements for the period ended 31 March 
2009, for accounting purposes.

COUNCIL COMMITTEES

 In terms of section 8 of the nHC Act, the Council has a 
discretion to establish committees to assist it in the per-
formance of its functions and, in addition to any members, 
it may appoint to such committees persons whom the 
Council considers competent or possess specific skills and 
expertise. Acting in terms thereof, the Council established 
the following Committees:

Management executive Committee
Audit Committee
Heritage Committee
Corporate services Committee
International Relations Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

the nHC has an Audit Committee which consists of three 
(3) members these being the Chairperson, who is a non-ex-
ecutive member of the Council, two (2) independent non-
executives one of whom is a Chartered Accountant(CA) 
and the Chief executive officer, the Chief Financial officer, 
the Company secretary who are ex- officio members. 

the overall objective of the committee is to assist the 
Council of the nHC in ensuring that management has cre-

CoRPoRAte GoVeRnAnCe
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ated and maintained effective risk management, an effec-
tive internal control environment in the organisation and 
that management demonstrates the necessary respect 
of the internal control and governance structures for the 
achievement of the objectives of the organisation as well 
as management of risks to an acceptable level. 
the Audit Committee meets at least four times a year but 
may meet more frequently when necessary. the Commit-
tee has adopted the Audit Charter and its terms of Refer-
ence, which have been formally adopted by the Council.

THE INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

Len Konar and Associates rendered the internal audit 
services during the year under review. In line with the 
requirements of the PFMA and good corporate gover-
nance, internal audit provided the Audit Committee and 
Management with assurance on the appropriateness and 
effectiveness of internal controls in place. the internal 
audit function provided the nHC with independent, ob-
jective appraisal and evaluation of risk and management 
thereof, evaluation of internal processes and control 
systems, governance processes, as well as identification 
of corrective action and suggested enhancements to 
controls and processes. 



41NATIONAL HERITAGE COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2010

the Heritage Unit of the nHC is the core business where 
all the programmes are conceptualized and implemented 
to fulfil the mandate and strategic objectives of the orga-
nization. Four strategic pillars are the contextual driving 
force for all the programmes that are initiated and imple-
mented by the nHC. these strategic pillars are about pro-
viding Policy Advice to the Minister of Arts and Culture, 
linking Heritage and nation Building, Positioning the Heri-
tage sector as significant Contributor to socio-economic 
development and lastly, Public Awareness, education and 
stakeholder Relations.

Policy Advice

within the context of providing advice to the Minister of 
Arts and Culture, the nHC has initiated the development 
of four policy frameworks in the following areas: 
• Repatriation of Heritage Resources; 
• Heritage Conservation and Development;
• Access to Heritage Institutions and Introduction of    
  Heritage Levy;
• Policy framework on Professional Standards and Ethics. 

Policy Framework on Repatriation of Heritage Resources

since the previous financial year 2008/2009, the nHC has 
initiated the development of a policy framework on Re-
patriation of Heritage Resources. the primary aim of the 
policy framework is to provide clear policy guidelines on 
repatriation, restitution and return of heritage resources 
such as heritage objects, artifacts, historical collections, 
fine art, documentary heritage, digitized material as well 
as human remains. the first draft has been completed and 
presented to a focus group on 17th August 2009. the sec-

ond draft was presented at a workshop (expert-meeting) 
on 11 February 2010. A workshop report and updated 
inputs and comments to the draft policy have been con-
solidated. the revised draft policy has been circulated for 
further input and comments. 

Policy Framework on Heritage Conservation and 
Development 

Research towards the development of a Policy Framework 
on Mainstreaming Heritage Conservation into develop-
ment Planning is still ongoing. the primary objective of 
the policy area is to develop a draft policy framework to 
guide the mainstreaming of the heritage conservation 
in development planning. Following a successful expert-
meeting April 2009, a draft report has been produced 
and circulated. A series of consultative meetings with key 
stakeholders have been taking place, including a success-
ful focus group meeting in March 2010. Research includ-
ing archival study and interviews are in progress.

Policy on Access to Heritage Institutions and 
Introduction of Heritage Levy

this policy area focuses on public access into heritage in-
stitutions including heritage resources such as places or 
sites and collections of cultural significance, with particu-
lar focus on factors determining access to heritage. Pre-
liminary research has revealed that the focus of the policy 
framework should not only be limited to the issue of ac-
cess fees to heritage institutions but be encompassing of 
all factors such as language, technology, physical access 
by disabled/physically challenged persons, amongst other 
factors, influencing and impacting on public access. 

HeRItAGe PRoGRAMMes
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A study on the investigation of the feasibility of a heritage levy 
proposing possible models for income generation for the sustain-
able management, conservation and promotion of heritage was 
completed. Archival research and consultations with stakeholders 
are taking place.

Policy framework on Professional Standards and Ethics 

one of the important and enabling factors for effective coordina-
tion of heritage initiatives in the sector, is to set policy measures 
on code of ethics and professional standards for practitioners in 
the field of heritage management. exploratory research and stake-
holder consultations have started. A draft concept document has 
been produced. An extensive and in-depth archival study com-
menced in september 2009.

Heritage in Nation Building 

Ubuntu in Nation Building

during the heritage month of september  2009, the nHC organ-
ised  the 4th Annual Ubuntu Imbizo and Awards ceremony in the 
eastern Cape (eC). In organising the Ubuntu Imbizo and Awards 
ceremonies, the nHC entered into a partnership with the host 
province - eastern Cape Provincial Government in particular the 
King sabata dalindyebo Municipality (Ksd Municipality in Mtha-
tha), Provincial department of Arts and Culture (eC) and the Pre-
miers office (eC). Both Ubuntu Imbizo and Awards ceremony co-
incided with the 20th anniversary and commemoration of the life 
of King sabata dalindyebo, who was  honoured alongside the first 
African to serve as the  secretary-General of the United nations 
(Un), dr Boutros Boutros Ghali.

there have been a series of build-up activities prior to the main 
events – Ubuntu Imbizo and Award Ceremony. the build-up activi-
ties were an integral part of the national campaign on Ubuntu in 
nation Building, where local communities participated in the ac-
tivities.  the following activities were dedicated to involving com-
munities and instilling the spirit of practicing Ubuntu:

   Mandela day in the spirit of Ubuntu : 18 July 2009 –             
      Kliptown Community (soweto);

   A research and publication on the Life and times of             
      King sabata dalindyebo;

   A documentary on the Life and times of King sabata         
      dalindyebo;

   Ubuntu dialogues where the young and elderly   
      citizens of Mthatha had an opportunity to enlighten         
      each other on the civil responsibilities of a community         
      according to cultural values.

   Ubuntu in Action Community visits; where the nHC  visited   
      members of the community who were investing their time and  
      resources in making a difference to others were acknowledged  
      and encouraged.

the aforementioned activities were successfully implemented 
and had far reaching impact on community participation and 
involvement.

Public Awareness, Education and Stakeholder Relations

Heritage and education outreach  
the programme on Heritage and education outreach has provid-
ed the nHC with the opportunity to engage broad stakeholders in 
an educational and experiential-learning project to teach learners 
and youth to be conscious of their heritage and the safeguarding 
thereof. In december 2009 a successful heritage and education 
outreach activity took place at Mapungubwe world Heritage site, 

HeRItAGe PRoGRAMMes
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in partnership with the following organizations: 
sAnParks, Moral Regeneration Movement (MRM), 
Campus After Hours, Kara Heritage Institution, 
department of Basic education and schools in 
provinces. nine schools from all the provinces 
participated in the competitive challenge. the 
top three schools were Batlhaping High school 
(north west Province), nwaridi secondary school 
(Limpopo Province) and orhovelani secondary 
school (Mpumalanga Province).the initiative was 
a resounding success with far reaching impact on 
youth education on heritage matters.

The Intellectual Making of Sol. T. Plaatjie
the project officially commenced on May 18, 
2008in partnership with the Human science re-
search Council (HsRC). the research project was 
based on the life and work of solomon thekiso 
Plaatje.  the research is complete and a book will 
be published in the following year. 

Early African Intellectuals

the second volume which is a continuation of 
the first book of the early African Intellectuals 
(2008) has commenced in collaboration with 
the Human sciences Research Council (HsRC). 
Preliminary research which includes literature 
review was completed. this 2nd Volume focuses 
on individuals whose public activities and works 
gained prominence in the early 20th century. the 
personalities that will be the subject of this book 

are: Albert nzula; Magema Fuze, Reverend James 
Mata dwane, noni Jabavu, and Charlotte Maxeke. 
the focus of this study also covers African women 
(Unsung Heroines) who contributed intellectually 
to the development and empowerment of many 
south Africans. 
 
Young Indigenous Artists 
Programme
Following the training of nine emerging Artists in 
indigenous art and technique of painting, in etho-
pia (2006), funding has been raised through the 
national Lottery to  assist the nine artists to set-
up cooperatives in their respective provinces. the 
cooperatives will serve as sites for training, exhibi-
tion and trade in fine arts. Further training on the 
establishment of Cooperatives has been provided 
through a partnership with sedA.  In June and 
July 2009, the nine Artists held a successful visual 
art exhibition at the Grahamstown national Arts 
Festival. Also in october 2009 the Artists exhib-
ited their works at Macufe Art Festival in Bloem-
fontein. the exhibitions presented an opportunity 
for exposure of the Artists and their works of art. 
Preparations are underway for further training in 
setting-up Cooperatives.   
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South African Traditional Music Achievement 
Awards (SATMA)

the nHC hosted the annual the sAtMA Awards 
in october 2009. the overwhelming attendance 
by the public was a sign of increased interest and 
appeal in the project. the sAtMA Awards con-
tinued to an exciting platform to showcase the 
diverse traditional south African music genres, 
with the aim of promoting and safeguarding this 
popular cultural heritage, in particular intangible 
cultural heritage or living heritage. the following 
key stakeholders were present national Lotteries 
distribution trust Fund (nLtdF), south African 
Broadcasting Corporation (sABC), KwaZulu na-
tal (KZn) Provincial Government, tourism KZn, 
Ithala Bank and KZn 2010 office. the event was a 
resounding success.

satma
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Vigorous discussions have ensued with different stake-
holders on how the economic trends will have spatial ef-
fects on the development of the Liberation Heritage Route 
(LRH).  such engagement has been aimed at determining 
how economic value can be unlocked from the LHR op-
portunity. the liberation route will be a network of sites 
linked together through a narrative which depicts the 
journey to liberation. the project is aimed at ultimately 
designing spaces which reflect social memory for continu-
ity and identity for the transmission of heritage to future 
generations. the route is a celebration of national memory 
associated with the history of the struggle for freedom or 
liberation.

Research

A national research programme was commenced to 
source empirical data and verified information about the 
iconic yet unknown contributors to the struggle history 
of south Africa. this ongoing programme will provide the 
ultimate data that will determine the national route map-
ping and route development.

the central principle and approach to this programme 
is ensuring that the key preservers of history, people in 
their social spaces, contribute immensely in giving au-
thentic reflections of their experiences during the libera-
tion struggle. All municipalities in south Africa have been 
alerted about the national research programme, with ac-
tive assistance requested from all of them.  this will help in 
broadening social collaboration through this research of 
popular memory.  

Business Case

A well researched business case for the development of 
the nLHR was completed and presented to the Council 
of the nHC.  the study illustrates various considerations 
in developing the LHR and makes a cost benefit analysis 
that proves the economic rewards for south Africa in the 
long term.

the research team is using available data, unearthing new 
stories, documenting with the aim to publish and also pro-
duce extensive audio-visual material which will cover an 
extensive geographical spread and different illuminating 
perspectives about the national liberation struggle.

World Heritage Site Inscription

the national Liberation Heritage Route is currently on 
the UnesCo tentative List which was published in August 
2009.  It has been accepted for its potential and that the 
significance of the south African struggle is exceptional. 
the process of developing a nomination dossier will com-
mence in the following financial year.

Stakeholder relations

the Liberation Heritage Route project has been escalated 
into a national project since April 2009.  therefore, the 
stakeholder focus has been one of the primary activities 
as the nHC sought to derive quality utility from interested 
stakeholders across the country. the stakeholders who 
were briefed about the project displayed a high level of 
interest:

Eastern Cape Department of Arts and Culture

the discussions with the eastern Cape department of Arts 
and Culture was aimed at exploring an institutional and 
operational model for the project.  A  Cabinet Resolution 
has been taken around the facilitation of provincial co-
ordination and implementation mechanisms of the nLHR.  
through the eastern Cape socio-economic Consultative 
Council a model was agreed upon which will:
• drive planning and implementation;
• Be a model for local consultation and decision making;
• Undertake site visits and build relations with   
   communities;
• Encourage inter-departmental collaboration mechanism  
  and mainstreaming of the project in the public sector;
• Establish research networks;
• Operationalize the NLHR through an ‘action team’;
• Establish co-ordinating forums and professional panels;
• Lead processes towards fiscal allocation to the project;
• Co-ordinate multi-agency implementation of the NLHR;
• Lead the development of strategic NLHR nodes and an  
   inter-site forum; (with emphasis on critical linkages and  
   sourcing of development expertise)
• Manage inter-sectoral programmes linked to the NLHR’  
  and 
• Broad stakeholder management

 A detailed project scope and proposed rollout for the 
future co-ordination of the project in eastern Cape was 
handed over to the nHC.  

nAtIonAL LIBeRAtIon HeRItAGe RoUte
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the University of Fort Hare; was keen to help in the con-
struction of the memory of the liberation struggle of the 
surrounding communities.

the nHC met the university rector to discuss the devel-
opment of the University of Fort Hare as a Liberation 
Heritage Route site.  Furthermore, the nHC was intent 
on working on sharing resources to strengthen research, 
knowledge and archival material.  the discussion were 
aimed at creating the alliance and synergies in col-
laborating on the development of the University of Fort 
Hare as a premium sites in the series of sites targeted 
for world Heritage site inscription under the auspices 
of the national Liberation Heritage Route. through this 
interface it was agreed that an inter-institutional and or-
ganisational collaboration will provide an avenue for the 
revitalization of the University of Fort Hare as a national 
memory site which will contribute to social cohesion and 

nation-building.

uMkhonto-wesizwe Veterans Association (MKVA) and the 
Azanian Peoples’ Liberation Amy Veterans Association;  
has welcomed the concept and their involvement in the 
Amathole area of the eastern Cape province. 

other important stakeholders whose contribution and 
involvement was solicited with success were the Mandela 
Capture site  in Howick, Buffalo City Municipality and 
the Amathole district Municipality. A district summit was 
convened by the district municipality to craft a plan of 
action with local municipalities and the stakeholders.

A few activities that were organised by other institutions 
invited the nHC to engage their stakeholders on the 
Liberation Heritage Route concept:
the Premier’s office in Kwa-Zulu natal convened a 

provincial heritage indaba as part of the heritage month 
activities where the nHC forged common understanding 
and buy-in.  

the Heritage Month of september was dedicated to 
showcasing progress with regard to the implementation 
of the Liberation Heritage Route in the Chris Hani district 
Municipality.  the nHC presented to the community dur-
ing the celebrations.

Ministerial Support

A series of meetings held with the national Minister, Hon. 
Lulu Xingwana has helped to secure high level political 
support for the national Liberation Heritage Route. the 
Minister of Arts and Culture, Ms Lulu Xingwana, convened 
an Inter-Ministerial meeting in Parliament (Cape town) 
for the presentation of the nLHR. Ministers present were 
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Hon. sicelo shiceka (Co-operative Governance and tradi-
tional Affairs), Hon. naledi Pandor (science and technology), 
Hon. Angie Mothsega (education) and Ms thokozile Xhasa 
(deputy Minister; tourism). 

International Relations

An official visit was conducted by the Chief executive officer 
of the national Heritage Council, Advocate sonwabile Man-
cotywa and the Project Manager of the national Liberation 
Heritage Route, Mr Babalo Mdikane from the 14th to the 
19th April 2009.  the visit was aimed at:

• Making an official hand-over of the Ubuntu Award to His 
  excellency, dr Fidel Castro or his delegated representatives;
• Learning about the approaches which guide the 
   management of the national heritage resources;
• Observing the governance models of all sites of   
  significance;
• Holding a series of meetings with senior politicians and  
   cultural heritage authorities.

the national Heritage Council has established cordial and 
fraternal relations with the Cuban Government on national 
Heritage matters. the relations are based on shared prin-
ciples on the need to utilize national strategies and policies 
for the management of heritage resources.  during an earlier 
trip to Cuba, the nHC was impressed by the sprawling infra-
structure which depicts the history of the Cuban Revolution. 
the substantive content and interpretation of the significant 
epochs was fascinating.

the path to ushering democracy in south Africa also owes 
much to the solidarity and contribution of the Cuban peo-
ple and its government.  the nHC has formalised a standing 
pledge with the Cuban government to continue to learn from 
each other and to advance common interests in the develop-
ment and management of national heritage resources.

Southern African Development Community (SADC)

establishing linkages with sAdC is part of the critical paths 
of completing the nLHR. the progress that has been made 
in researching and documenting the stories associated with 
the national liberation struggle from experiences of freedom 
fighters who used Botswana as a base and a route to other 
countries was presented to the High Commission of south 
Africa in Botswana .  

Capacity building

the human resource to drive the increasingly demanding 
process of the nLHR has grown to include a Project Manager 
as well as a Finance and Administration officer.

nAtIonAL LIBeRAtIon HeRItAGe RoUte
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Advocacy  workshops

twenty seven advocacy workshops were conducted 
throughout the country with three sessions hosted in 
each of the nine provinces. these were aimed at address-
ing gaps within communities whre a lack of participation 
in our funding programme was observed. 

Funding summit and impact 
study
An impact study was commissioned to assess the con-
tribution of all economic sectors in funding the heritage 
projects in south Africa. outcomes of deliberations of a 
national funding summit that was also held by the nHC 
contributed critical insights to the study. Recommenda-
tions of the impact study assisted in consolidating a draft 
national strategy on Heritage Funding in south Africa and 
a Funders Forum framework. Representatives from inter-
national organisations, national government, business 
civil society and heritage practitioners participated in the 
summit.

 
Grants
In the last quarter of the financial year, a public call was 
made inviting heritage organisations and practitioners 
to submit applications for funding with implementation 
targeted for the ensuing year. Applications were invited in 
the following categories: women & Heritage; Youth, edu-
cation and Heritage; Heritage of the Khoi-san People; Lib-
eration Heritage struggle; and Intangible Heritage.

FUndInG
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the past year was marked by a significant growth of inno-
vative programmes and projects of the national Heritage 
Council. the Marketing and Communications unit had to 
increase its support in all its functions to the core business. 
whilst the concentration was to achieve a wider reach in 
creating awareness through public relations and adver-
tising, building relations with stakeholders received par-
ticular attention. the awareness levels of the public anout 
their heritage and its importance continues to rise. the in-
creased number of enquiries, applications for funding and 
attendance of events was a good testimony.

Media relations

All the projects of the nHC were positively and extensively 
profiled by the media in both electronic and print. Partner-
ships were secured to specifically ensure that the media 
focuses on profiling heritage during the heritage month. 
to an extent possible, opportunities were seized to place 
critical thought provoking opinions of the nHC in various 
national print media. All the opinion pieces that were writ-
ten by the Ceo were able to be published. debates on talk 
shows also increased awareness on matters of heritage 
importance.

Advertising

Various advertising campaigns were undertaken to pro-
file the conferences that the HnC held. some of the high-
lights were the Liberation Heritage Route summit and 
Heritage education Conference and the Heritage Funding 
Conference.

Branding

the nHC was prominently branded at activities of stake-
holders where partnerships were secured. these included 
amongst the other the anniversary celebration of Presi-
dent nelson Mandela’s release from Robben Island, the 
one Million Men’s March by the Brothers for Life and 
launches of projects that were co-funded by the nHC. 

Stakeholder relations

A selected number of stakeholders and friends of the nHC 
ranging from the private sector to municipalities whose 
contribution and support to the nHC has been strategic, 
were engaged in social sessions such as the Cape town 
Jazz Festival.

Publications

special publications were produced for activities that 
required information material such as the Ubuntu cam-
paign, Young Indigenous Artists and the Life and time of 
the Ubuntu Award recipient of 2009. the annual calendar 
diary continued to be an informative and useful item to 
the stakeholders of the nHC.

MARKetInG And CoMMUnICAtIons
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Policies and procedures

effective leadership of human capital is paramount for 
running the business of the nHC. Currently the nHC has 
entrenched policies and procedures that comply with 
the overall legislative imperatives and fair employment 
practices. there is participatory management within 
the organisation. notable areas of good governance are 
in: Performance Management; HR and Payroll; Business 
Culture; employee wellness; safety Initiatives;
training and development.

the nHC policies and procedures’ areas are reviewed 
from time to time to improve employment conditions, 
employee well-being and effective leadership of the 
workforce.

Employee profile 

the nHC has improved on its business commitment to 
diversify its employees’ profile in the workplace by en-
suring that the recruitment of women is accelerated. 

Current Employee profile 

HUMAn ResoURCes

Gender

Chief executive officer Male

General Manager 
Chief Financial officer   

Male
Female 

Human Resources /office Manager Male

Company secretary Female

Funding Manager 
Heritage Manager 

Female
Male

Marketing Manager Male

Project Leader: Liberation Heritage Route Male

senior Administration officer (Assistant to Com-
pany secretary)

Female

Policy Research specialist 
Coordinator-Advocacy and education
Heritage Programmes Coordinator

Female
Male

Female

Finance officer
Funding Coordinator
sCM officer/Accountant            

Male
Male

Female

Administrative officer: Liberation Heritage Route Male

Personal Assistant to Ceo
Personal Assistant (to General Manager)

Female
Female

Receptionist Female

driver Male

Housekeeper Female



55NATIONAL HERITAGE COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2010

In keeping with the retention of employees, the nHC did not expe-
rience any attrition during the year under review.

Training and Development

In order to ensure that high performance was maintained, the 
nHC continued to invest in employees in business related and 
heritage management training and development. Concentration 
was devoted to the following training: Risk Management; office 
Management; effective Company workshops; effectiveness for 
executive PA’s; events Management; Project Management; Better 
Business writing; Mastering Minutes and Meetings Protocol.

Employee Forum

the employee Forum that was launched during July 2008 is effec-
tive and assists leadership of the nHC to assess and take sound 
decisions to improve conditions in the workplace. the forum is 
also instrumental in making recommendations to Management to 
improve areas for the effective and smooth running of the organi-
zation and wellness. 
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mandela  day
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we are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2010.

Audit Committee Members and Attendance

the national Heritage Council has an audit committee structure which operates in terms on the 
Council’s approved Audit Committee Charter.

the audit committee consisted of the members listed hereunder and meets at least two (2) times 
per annum as per the approved audit committee charter. during the current   year six (6) audit com-
mittee meetings were held and attended as follows:
 
Name of Member   Number of meetings attended

- Mr. J Mdeni (Chairperson)   5
- Mr. dt ntuli     6
- Ms Hn Jaxa     6  

with effect from the 15 July 2010, a new Audit Committee was established and the following mem-
bers were confirmed to serve on the national Heritage Council’s Audit Committee for a period of 
three years:

- Ms n. Mnxasana (Chairperson)
- Mr. ZL Fihlani 
- Mr. L. Mbekeni

Audit Committee Responsibility

the Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 51 
(1) (a) (ii), 76 (4) (d), and 77 of the PFMA and treasury Regulation 27.1.8

the previous Audit Committee has reported, during the previous years that it has adopted appro-
priate formal terms of reference as its audit committee charter, has regulated its affairs in compli-
ance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. the current 
Audit Committee will review the terms of reference in line with treasury Regulation 27.1.6 to en-
sure that they are still relevant. 

The effectiveness of internal control

the system of control is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded 
and liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. In line with the PFMA and the King III Re-
port Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee and man-
agement with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. this is achieved 
by means of the risk management process, as well as the identifications of corrective actions and 
suggested enhancements to the controls and processes.  From the Audit Report on the Annual 
Financial statements, and management letter of the Auditor- General, it was noted that the ac-
counting authority did not exercise adequate oversight over compliance with laws and regulations 
relating to supply chain management and the financial statements and other information to be 
included in the annual report were not adequately reviewed for completeness and accuracy prior 
to submission for audit. Accordingly, we cannot report that the system of internal control was effec-
tive for the year under review. However, our conclusion is only limited to the deficiencies identified 
during the audit. we were not in a position to review the internal audit reports for the year under 
review due to the fact that our appointment was subsequent to year end.  

the Audit Committee is not in a position to comment about the content and quality of quarterly 
reports prepared and issued by the Accounting officer of the Council during the year under review 
as we were not in a position to review such reports due to our appointment being after year end. 

Evaluation of Financial Statements

the Audit Committee has:

• Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual   
  report with the Auditor General and Management;
• Reviewed the Auditor-General’s management letter and management’s response thereto; and
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

the Audit Committee concurs and accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the annual finan-
cial statements, and is of the opinion that the audited financial statements be accepted and read 
together with the report of the Auditor-General.

RePoRt oF tHe AUdIt CoMMIttee

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
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Internal Audit

the Audit Committee cannot conclude on whether the internal audit function is operating 
effectively and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the Council’s in its audit as we 
have not yet reviewed the risks identified as well as the internal auditors report.

Auditor General

we have met with the Auditor General, and there are no unresolved issues.

-----------------------------------------------------
Ms n Mnxasana
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
date 31 July 2010
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Introduction

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the national Heritage Council 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the statement 
of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for 
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explana-
tory information as set out on pages 64 to 94.

Accounting Authority’s responsibility for the financial statements

the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with the south African standards of Generally Rec-
ognised Accounting Practice (sA standards of GRAP) and in the manner required by the 
Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act no. 1 of 1999). this responsibility includes: de-
signing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

As required by section 188 of the Constitution of south Africa and section 4 of the Public 
Audit Act of south Africa and section 13 of the national Heritage Council Act, 1999, my 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with International standards on Auditing and General 
Notice 1570 of 2009 issued in Government Gazette 32758 of 27 November 2009. those stan-
dards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. the procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the cir-
cumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of account-
ing policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the national Heritage Council as at 31 March 2010, and its financial performance 
and its cash flows for the year ended in accordance with the south African standards of 
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (sA standards of GRAP) and in the manner re-
quired by the Public Finance Management Act of south Africa.

Emphasis of matter 

I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these 
matters:

Restatement of corresponding figures 

As disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 
2009 have been restated as a result of errors discovered during 2010 in the financial state-
ments of the national Heritage Council at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2009.

Fruitless and wasteful and irregular expenditure 

As disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure to the amount 
of R5,32 million (2009: R2,0 million) was incurred as a result of inadequate controls to en-
sure that procurement of services complies with the Public Finance Management Act and 

RePoRt oF tHe AUdItoR-GeneRAL to PARLIAMent on tHe FInAnCIAL stAteMents oF tHe nAtIonAL 
HeRItAGe CoUnCIL FoR YeAR ended 31 MARCH 2010
RePoRt on tHe FInAnCIAL stAteMents
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treasury Regulations. In addition, fruitless and wasteful expenditure to the amount of R235 000 was 
incurred as a proper verification of an employees credentials was not performed.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In terms of the PAA of south Africa and General notice 1570 of 2009, issued in Government Gazette No. 
32758 of 27 November 2009 I include below my findings on the report on predetermined objectives, 
compliance with the Public Finance Management Act and financial management (internal control).

Findings

Predetermined objectives

Usefulness of information

For the strategic objectives reported 100% of the planned and reported targets were not:

• Measurable in identifying the required performance
• Time bound in specifying the time period or deadline for delivery 

Compliance with laws and regulations

Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 1999 and Treasury Regulations of 2005

Contrary to the requirements of tR16A3.2 and section 51(1) (a) (iii) of the PFMA, the accounting au-
thority did not implement and enforce controls to prevent the occurrence of irregular expenditure 
arising from the appointment of service providers.

INTERNAL CONTROL

I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and the report on pre-
determined objectives and compliance with the PFMA but not for the purposes of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. the matters reported are limited to the deficiencies 
identified during the audit.

 Leadership
the accounting authority did not exercise adequate oversight over compliance with laws and regula-
tions relating to supply chain management to prevent irregular expenditure.

Financial and performance management

the financial statements and other information to be included in the annual report were not ad-
equately reviewed for completeness and accuracy prior to submission for audit.

Pretoria
31 July 2010
 



63NATIONAL HERITAGE COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2010

the Accounting Authority is required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), 
to maintain adequate accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of 
the financial statements and related financial information included in this report.  It is the 
responsibility of the national Heritage Council to ensure that the financial statements fairly 
present the state of affairs of the national Heritage Council as at the end of the financial 
year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended.  the external 
auditors are responsible for report on the fair presentation of the financial statements. 

the financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently ap-
plied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates. 

the Accounting Authority acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system 
of internal controls established by the national Heritage Council and place considerable 
importance on maintaining a strong control environment.  to enable the Accounting Au-
thority to meet these responsibilities, the Council set standards for internal control aimed 
at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner.  the standards include the 
proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective account-
ing procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.  
these controls are monitored throughout the national Heritage Council and all employees 
are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring that the national Heritage 
Council’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above 
reproach.  the focus of risk management in the national Heritage Council is on identifying, 
assessing, managing and monitoring all forms of risk known to the national Heritage Coun-
cil.  while operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Council endeavours to minimise 
it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are 
applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. 

the Accounting Authority is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations 
given by Management that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance 
that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial statements.  
However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not ab-
solute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

the Accounting Authority have reviewed the national Heritage Council’s cash flow forecast 
for the year ended 31 March 2010 and, in the light of this review and the current financial 
position, they are satisfied that the national Heritage Council has access to adequate re-
sources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 

the national Heritage Council is wholly dependent on the department of Arts and Culture 
for continued funding of operations.  the financial statements are prepared on the basis 
that the national Heritage Council is a going concern and that the department of Arts and 
Culture has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of 
the national Heritage Council. 

the financial statements, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were ap-
proved by the Accounting Authority on 31 May 2010.

________________________   
CHIeF eXeCUtIVe oFFICeR    
AdV. s MAnCotYwA  

stAteMent oF ResPonsIBILItY

AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents FoR tHe YeAR ended 31 MARCH 2010
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  NOTES   2010   2009

R ‘000 R ‘000

ASSETS

Current assets            14,292           20,498

Receivables from exchange transactions 4                 72               1,809 

Prepayments and advances 5               6,486                 60 

Cash and cash equivalents 6            7,734           18,629 

Non-current assets            1,227            1,634 

Property, plant and equipment 2            1,153            1,484 

Intangible assets 3                 74               150 

Total Assets            15,519           22,132

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities            14,019           15,158 

Payables from exchange transactions 7 2,562            4,682

deferred income/unspent conditional grants and receipts 8            10,142            9,068 

Finance lease obligation 9              53               144 

Bonuses 11 987 1,034

Provisions 10            275            230

Non-current liabilities               246               343 

Finance lease obligation 9              246               343 

total Liabilities           14,265           15,501

TOTAL NET ASSETS               1,254            6,631 

Accumulated surplus               1,254            6,631 

NET ASSETS               1,254            6,631 

stAteMent oF FInAnCIAL PosItIon

AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents FoR tHe YeAR ended 31 MARCH 2010
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  NOTES   2010   2009

R ‘000 R ‘000

REVENUE            69,151            48,165 

Non-exchange revenue            68,318            46,743 

Government grant 12            48,435            29,965 

Amortised Government – other 13             8,179          7,262

Amortised Government  - national Lottery 13            11,704              9,516 

Exchange revenue                833              1,422 

other income 14                154                  10 

Interest received 15                679              1,412 

TOTAL EXPENSES       (74,528)           (55,437)

operating expenses 16           (41,086)           (34,202)

Administrative expenses 17           (20,141)           (11,639)

employee related costs 18           (11,723)             (8,531)

operating lease expenses 19               (648)                (434)

Finance costs 20               (167)                 (71)

depreciation 21               (651)                (534)

Amortisation 22               (112)                 (26)

DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR            (5,377)             (7,272)

stAteMent oF FInAnCIAL PeRFoRMAnCe
AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents FoR tHe YeAR ended 31 MARCH 2010
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Accumulated 

Surplus/ (Deficit)
 

Total 
Equity

R ‘000 R ‘000

Balance at 1  April 2008           13,903           13,903 

deficit for the year           (7,272)           (7,272)

Balance at 31 March 2009            6,631            6,631

deficit for the year           (5,377)           (5,377)

Balance at 31 March 2010             1,254            1,254

stAteMent oF CHAnGes In net Assets

AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents FoR tHe YeAR ended 31 MARCH 2010
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  NOTES 2010   2009

R ‘000 R ‘000

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH RECEIPTS             71,617           46,536 

Government Grant - dAC 12             48,435           29,965 

other Receipts 14                   30                 10 

Amortised Government Conditional Grants             22,505           15,149 

Interest Received                 647            1,412 

CASH PAID TO SUPPLIERS AND EMPLOYEES           (82,092)          (43,990)

employee Related Costs            (10,293)           (8,531)

suppliers (71,632)                   (35,388)

Interest Paid 20                (167)                  (71)

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 24            (10,475)            2,546 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (371)                            (615)

Acquisition of Property, plant and equipment (335)                            (472)

Acquisition of Intangible 3 (36)                              (143)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment for finance lease                      (49)              (106)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS (10,895)                     1,825 

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year             18,629           16,804 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 6               7,734             18,629 

CAsH FLow stAteMent

AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents FoR tHe YeAR ended 31 MARCH 2010
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the Financial statements are presented in accordance with south African Generally Accepted Ac-
counting Practice, including any interpretations of such statements issued by the Accounting Prac-
tices Board, with the prescribed standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), and 
the provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), as amended, as well as other 
applicable legislation. the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GRAP and GAAP 
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise 
its judgment in the process of applying accounting policies. the areas involving a higher degree of 
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements are disclosed in the relevant notes. 

the following GRAP statements replace the equivalent GAAP statement as follows:

Standard of GRAP       Standard of GAAP

GRAP 1:  Presentation of financial statements AC101: Presentation of financial statements
GRAP 2:  Cash flow statements     AC118:  Cash flow statements
GRAP 3:  Accounting policies, changes in    AC103:  Accounting policies, changes in 
                 accounting estimates and errors                    estimates and errors

the recognition and measurement principles in the above GRAP and GAAP statements do not differ 
or result in material differences in items presented and disclosed in the financial statements.  the 
implementation of GRAP 1, 2, and 3 has resulted in the following significant changes in the presenta-
tion of the financial statements.

Terminology Differences: 

Standard of GRAP    Replaced Statement of GAAP 

statement of financial performance  Income statement
statement of financial position   Balance sheet
statements of changes in net assets  statement of changes in equity
net assets     equity
surplus/deficit for the period   Profit/loss for the period
Accumulated surplus/deficit   Retained earnings

Contributions from owners   share Capital
distribution to owners   dividends
Reporting date    Balance sheet date

the cash flow statement can only be prepared in accordance with the direct method.

Accounting policy developments include new standards issued, amendments to standards, and in-
terpretation issued on new standards. these developments resulted in the first time adoption of 
new standards, the restatement of prior year where applicable. Management assessed the impact 
of all new standards issued, amendments to standards, and interpretations issued on current stan-
dards.

Standards, amendments, and interpretation effective in the current year:

IFRs 7 “Financial instruments”:  disclosures, and a complementary amendment to IAs 1, presentation 
of financial statements - capital disclosures. the introduction of new disclosures relating to financial 
instruments does not have any impact on the classification.

the application of the new standards will not have a significant impact on the Financial statements 
in the period of initial application.

Effect of new Standards of GRAP issued

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following standards were issued but not 
yet effective. these approved standards of GRAP are not likely to affect Annual Financial statements 
when they are adopted since accounting policies have been determined based on the principles in 
these standards:

Standard      Applicable to NHC

GRAP 24 - Presentation of Budget 
                    Information in Financial statements  Yes

1.  Presentation of annual financial statements

ACCoUntInG PoLICIes

AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents FoR tHe YeAR ended 31 MARCH 2010
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1.  Presentation of annual financial statements (continued)

GRAP 25 - employee Benefits    Yes
GRAP 103 - Heritage Assets    Yes
GRAP 104 - Financial Instruments   Yes

the following standards of GRAP became effective on 1 April 2009 and have been adopted by the 
nHC. this adoption did not result in any additional disclosures or changes in accounting policies

Standard      Applicable to NHC 

 GRAP 13 - Leases     Yes
GRAP 14 - events after the reporting date   Yes
GRAP 17 - Property Plant and equipment   Yes
GRAP 19 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 
                    and Contingent Assets   Yes
GRAP 102 - Intangible    Yes

1.1 Basis of Preparation

the financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except where stated oth-
erwise. these financial statements are presented in south African Rands. the financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with the effective standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practices (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting 
standards Board. the following are the principal accounting policies used by the Council which are 
consistent with those of the previous year. 

1.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

*	it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Council;    
   and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equip-
ment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it.  If a replacement cost 
is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying 
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
 
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impair-
ment losses. the estimated useful lives of the main assets categories are as follows: 

Item    Rate 
Computer equipment  3 years (33.33%) 
office equipment   6 years (16.67%)
Motor vehicles   5 years (20 %)
Furniture and Fittings   6 years (16.67%)
Leasehold improvements  Lease term over the period of lease 
 
Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the building lease agreement.  deprecia-
tion rates and residual values are considered annually and adjusted if appropriate.
 
the residual value and the useful life of each asset are reviewed at each financial period-end. each 
part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total 
cost of the item shall be depreciated separately. 

the depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the 
carrying amount of another asset. the gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of prop-
erty, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised.  

the gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is deter-
mined as the difference between the net disposal proceed, if any, and the carrying amount of the 
item.

ACCoUntInG PoLICIes
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1.3 Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is recognised when: 

* It is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow            
   to the entity; and  the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 

expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an ex-
pense when it is incurred. 

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is 
recognised when: 

* It is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale; 
* there is an intention to complete and use or sell it; 
* there is an ability to use or sell it; 
* It will generate probable future economic benefits; 
* there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to    
   use or sell the asset; and the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be  
   measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, 
there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash 
inflows.  Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets.  For all other intangible assets, 
amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life. 

the amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every 
period-end. 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a definite useful life after it was classified as 
indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired.  As a result, the asset is tested for impair-
ment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life. 

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in sub-
stance are not recognised as intangible assets. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets on a straight line basis, to their residual 
values as follows: 
Item     Useful life 
Computer software    2 years (50%) 

1.4 Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the national Heritage Council becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

the national Heritage Council classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial 
recognition as a financial asset or financial liability in accordance with the substance of the contrac-
tual arrangement. 

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value. Financial assets and financial liabilities have 
not been offset in the statement of Financial Position. 
  
Trade and Other Receivables 

trade and other receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost which, due to their short term nature, closely approximates their fair 
value.  Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in surplus or 
deficit when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.  significant financial difficulties of 
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default 
or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade 
receivable is impaired.  

the allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed 

ACCoUntInG PoLICIes
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at initial recognition. 

1.4 Financial Instruments (continued) 

trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables. other receivables consist of pre-
paid expenses and deposits relating to the provision of electricity and the leasing of premises.  these 
receivables are stated as cost. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and other short-term highly liquid investments 
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value.  these are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value. 

Trade and Other Payables 

trade and other payables are stated at fair value. Items classified within trade and other payables 
are not usually re-measured, as obligations are usually known with a high degree of certainty and 
its settlement is short term. 

1.5  Tax

Tax Expenses

the national Heritage Council is exempt from taxation in terms of section 10 (1) (cA) (i) of the In-
come tax Act. 

1.6 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership.  A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership. 

Operating Leases

operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  

the difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are 
recognised as an operating lease asset.  this liability is not discounted. 

Finance Leases

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at 
amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum 
lease payments.  the corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial 
position as a finance lease obligation. 

the discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the inter-
est rate implicit in the lease.

the lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding 
liability.  the finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a 
constant periodic rate on the remaining balance of the liability.  

1.7 Impairment of assets

the national Heritage Council assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there 
is any indication that an asset may be impaired.  If any such indication exists, the national Heritage 
Council estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the National Heritage Council also:

 tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for  
    impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount.  this 
    impairment test is performed during the annual period and at the same time every period. 

If there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the 
individual asset.

ACCoUntInG PoLICIes
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Short term benefits

the cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after the service is ren-
dered, such as paid vacation leave and bonus), are recognised in the period in which the service is 
rendered and are not discounted. 

the expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render 
services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the ab-
sence occurs. 

the expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or construc-
tive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance. 

Defined contribution plans

Pension contributions are provided for employees by means of a defined contribution provided 
fund externally administered by Liberty Life.  the defined contribution provident fund is governed 
by the Pension Funds Act, 1956. Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are 
charged as an expense as they fall due. 

1.9 Accruals and contingencies

Accruals are recognised when: 

* the national Heritage Council has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 
* It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle               
   the obligation; and 
* A reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

the amount of accruals is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the 
obligation. where some or all of the expenditure required settling a provision is expected to be reim-
bursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually 

certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. 

the reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset.  the amount recognised for the reimburse-
ment shall not exceed the amount of the accruals. Accruals are not recognised for future operating 
deficits. 

1.10 Government Grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that: 
* the national Heritage Council will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and 
* the grants will be received.. 

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods 
necessary to match them with the related costs that they are intended to compensate. 

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related 
costs is recognised as income of the period in which it becomes receivable. 

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are presented in 
the statement of financial position by setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the 
grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset. 

Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the income statement (separately). 

Repayment of a grant related to income is applied first against any un-amortised deferred credit set 
up in respect of the grant.  to the extent that the repayment exceeds any such deferred credit, or 
were no deferred credit exists. the repayment is recognised immediately as an expense. 

Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by increasing the carrying amount of the as-
set or reducing the deferred income balance by the amount repayable.  the cumulative additional 
depreciation that would have been recognised to date as an expense in the absence of the grant is 
recognised immediately as an expense. 

1.8 Employee benefits

ACCoUntInG PoLICIes
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1.11 Revenue 

Revenue comprises the fair value of considerations received or receivable in the ordinary cause of 
Council’s business. 

Revenue is also recognised as follows: 

* Government grants as stated in accounting policy 1.10 
* Interest income is recognised in the statement of financial performance on a time proportionate    
   basis using the effective interest rate method. 

1.12 Comparative figures

where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation 
in the current year. 

the comparative figures shown in these financial statements are limited to the figures shown in the 
previous years’ audited financial statements and such other comparative figures that the national 
Heritage Council may reasonably have available for reporting in terms of the Public Finance Man-
agement Act. 

1.13 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means: 

* overspending of a grant or a main division within a grant; and 
* expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a grant or, in the case of a main division, not 
    accordance with the purpose of the main division. 

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement 
of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred.  the expenditure is classified 
in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for 

as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 
1.14 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and could have been avoided had 
reasonable care been exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the 
statement of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred.  the expenditure 
is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently 
accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.15 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised 
expenditure, incurred in contravention of or is not in accordance with a requirement of any appli-
cable legislation. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was 
condoned before year - end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be re-
corded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register.  In such an instance, no further action is 
required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which 
condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register.  
no further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements. 

where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the 
following financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be 
updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which 
has not condoned by the national treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropri-
ately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed 

ACCoUntInG PoLICIes
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to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law.  Immediate steps must 
thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned.  If recovery is not possible, 
the accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as bad debt and disclose 
such in the relevant note to the financial statements.  the irregular expenditure register must also 
be updated accordingly.  If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable 
in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure 
item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the 
irregular expenditure register. 

1.16  Research and development expenditure

Research costs are charged against operating surplus as incurred. 

Development costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred unless the fol-
lowing criteria are met: 

* the product or process is clearly defined and the costs attributable to the process or product can      
   be separately identified and measured reliably; 
* the technical feasibility of the product or process can be demonstrated; 
* the existence of a market or, if to be used internally rather than sold, its usefulness to the entity   
   can be demonstrated; 
* Adequate resources exist, or their availability can be demonstrated, to complete the project and  
   then market or use the product or process; and 
* the asset must be separately identifiable. 

where development costs are deferred, they are written off on a straight-line basis over the life of 
the process or product, subject to a maximum of five years.  the amortisation begins from the com-
mencement of the commercial production of the product or use of the process to which they relate. 

1.17 Judgments made by Management

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 

income and expenses, and related disclosures. Historical experience and various other factors be-
lieved to be reasonable under the circumstances are used in these instances. Actual results in the 
future could differ from these estimates. significant judgment has been exercised in determining 
the following:  

Fair value estimation 

the amortised cost (using the effective interest method); less impairment provision of trade receiv-
ables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. the present value of future cash 
flows (using the effective interest method), is assumed to approximate the fair value of revenue and 
purchase transactions. 

Impairment testing 

the entity makes judgment as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease 
in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

Provisions  

Provisions are based on estimates using the information available to management at reporting date.   

1.18  Services received in kind

services received in kind consist primarily of technical assistance received by the national Heritage 
Council and project group members.  the national Heritage Council cannot reliably determine a fair 
value for this assistance, and as a result does not recognise the value of these services received in the 
statement of Financial Performance. 

1.19 Related Parties

the Council operates in an economic environment currently dominated by entities directly or indi-
rectly owned by the south African government. As a result of the constitutional independence of all 
three spheres of government in south Africa, only national and provincial spheres of government 

1.15 Irregular expenditure (continued)
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will be related parties. 

1.19 Related Parties (continued)

Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. the Chief executive officer, Chief 
Financial officer, General Manager and the Company secretary are the only positions regarded as being at key management level. 

Close family members of key management are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by key management individuals or other par-
ties related to the entity. 

1.20 Finance Income

Finance income comprises interest receivable on positive bank balances and funds invested. Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal out-
standing and the effective interest rate over the period to maturity.   

1.21  Material losses

Material losses are losses incurred that do not comprise normal expenditure or income due to the Council and not recovered. 
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2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT            

2010

Leasehold 
property

Furniture and 
Fittings

Motor 
Vehicles

Office 
Equipment

IT Equipment
Leased 
assets

TOTAL

 R ‘000  R ‘000  R ‘000  R ‘000  R ‘000  R ‘000  R ‘000

Opening Balances

Cost            246            972            142             282            487         688         2,817 

Accumulated depreciation           (137)           (508)           (118)            (138)           (111)        (321)        (1,333)

Carrying amount            109            464             24             144            376         367         1,484 

Movement during the year

Additions              19            173                -               33            110             341            676 

derecognition                 -                -                -                  -                 -             (355)                (355)

depreciation           (128)           (183)            (24)              (53)           (188)        (75)           (651)

Closing balances

Cost            265         1,145            142             315            597        341         2,805 

Accumulated depreciation              (265)           (691)           (142)            (191)           (299)        (64)        (1,652)

Carrying amount                -            454                -             124            298         277         1,153

notes to tHe AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents
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2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)            

2009

 
Leasehold 

property
Furniture and 

Fittings
Motor Vehicles Office Equipment IT Equipment Leased 

assets
TOTAL

 R ‘000  R ‘000  R ‘000  R ‘000  R ‘000  R ‘000  R ‘000

Opening Balances

Cost            217            960            142             244            443         688         2,694 

Accumulated depreciation             (54)           (400)            (90)            (102)
                                

(288)
       (183)        (1,117)

Carrying amount            163            560             52             142            155         505         1,577 

Movement during the year

Additions              29             77                -               48            318             -            472 

disposals                 -            (21)                -                (4)               (6)             -             (31)

depreciation             (83)           (152)            (28)              (42)             (91)        (138)           (534)

Closing balances

Cost            246            972            142             282            487         688         2,817 

Accumulated depreciation           (137)           (508)           (118)            (138)           (111)        (321)        (1,333)

Carrying amount            109            464             24             144            376         367         1,484 

Assets to the historical cost of R829, 267 (2010) have been fully depreciated, but are still in use.
A register containing the information required by section 63 of the PFMA is available for inspection at the registered office of the national Heritage Council.
the national Heritage Council received non-monetary grant in respect of depreciable assets which are allocated to the income over the period of depreciation (Refer to note 8).
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  2010   2009

R ‘000 R ‘000
3.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS      

      Computer software

      opening Balance (Cost)               176                 196 

      opening balance (Accumulated Amortisation)                (26)                (163)

      Carrying Amount (opening Balances)               150                   33 

      Additions                 36                 143 

      Amortisation (during the year)              (112)                  (26)

                74                 150 

4. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS      

      sundry debtors
                      

15  
                  1,655 

      staff Loans & debtors                   7                   17 

      Interest receivable                 50                 137 

Financial assets                 72                 1,809 

5.  PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES      

      deposit for rent                 82                   42 

      Prepayments and advances          6,404                   18 

             6,486                   60 

notes to tHe AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents
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6.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS      

     Cash on hand                   1                    1 

     Cash at bank            1,771                   16 

      Funds held on call deposit            5,962            18,612 

Financial assets            7,734            18,629 

7.  PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS      

Financial liabilities            2,562 4,605

      trade payables            2,119              4,295 

      salary related payables               443                 310 

Other Payables                   -                   77 

      operating lease payables                   -                   77 

           2,562              4,682 

see note 27 on Financial Instruments on how risk is managed in relation to the financial assets listed above.

2010   2009

R ‘000 R ‘000

notes to tHe AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents
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  2010   2009

R ‘000 R ‘000

8.  DEFERRED INCOME      

      Balance at the beginning of the year                  9,068                     130 

      non - current assets                      65                     130 

      Conditional Grants – dAC                  9,003                         - 

      Conditional Grants - national Lottery                         -                         - 

      Movement during the year  - Receipts                22,521                25,716 

      non - current assets                      13                         - 

      Conditional Grants – dAC                         -                16,200 

      eastern Cape department of sports and Recreation                  2,849                       -   

      Conditional Grants - national Lottery                19,659                  9,516 

      Movement during the year  - Recognised               (21,447)               (16,778)

      non - current assets                     (67)                         (65) 

      Conditional Grants – dAC                 (5,263)                 (7,197)

      eastern Cape department of sports and Recreation                 (2,849)                         - 

      Conditional Grants – national Lottery – Receivables (1,564)

      Conditional Grants - national Lottery – Revenue               (11,704)                 (9,516)

     Balance at year end                  10,142                  9,068 

      non - current assets                      11                     65 

      Conditional Grants – dAC                  3,740                  9,003 

      eastern Cape department of sports and Recreation                         -                         - 

      Conditional Grants - national Lottery                     6,391                         - 

      Long term portion - -

      short term portion                  10,142 9,068

                 10,142                  9,068 

notes to tHe AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents
AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents FoR tHe YeAR ended 31 MARCH 2010



81NATIONAL HERITAGE COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2010

  2010 2009

   R ‘000 R ‘000

 9.  FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATION      

Minimum  Lease payments due

-       Within one year 241                     190 

-       In second to fifth year inclusive 957                     378 

1,198                     568 

Less:  Future finance charges (899)                                         (81)

Present value of minimum lease payments
                   

299 
                      487 

Present value of minimum lease payments due

-       Within one year                     53                     144 

-       In second to fifth year inclusive
                    

246 
                    343 

                    
299 

                      487 

Long-term portion of finance lease obligation 246                     343 

Current portion of finance lease obligation 53                     144 

299                       487 

It is National Heritage Council policy to lease certain equipment under finance leases:

1) entered into a rental operational agreement with IteC Finance Limited for three photocopy machines effective 1 May 2009.  the contract period is for 60 months at R182, 218 per annum using a 15%  
     escalation rate.  Additional finance cost are charged by the lessor which are based on the prime rate,  thus attracting additional finance costs which are not included in the above reconciliation. the  
     lease is accounted for as a finance lease since the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the assets, even though the title to the asset may not be transferred on expiry of the lease term. 

2) entered into a rental operational agreement with sAsFIn Limited for a PABX system effective from 1 April 09. the contract period is for 60 months, at R 34,186 per annum. 

notes to tHe AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents
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  2010 2009

R ‘000 R ‘000

10.  PROVISIONS      

     Leave provision               230                    275 

     Opening balances            230                    275 

     Additions

     Leave provision               275                    230 

           275                 230

     Utilised
     Leave provision                   -                   (155)

           -                   (155))

     Reversed
     Leave provision              (230)                   (120)

             (230)                   (120)

     Closing balances

     Leave provision               275                    230 

           275                 230

11. Bonuses      

     

     Bonuses              1,034                   324 

     Opening balances           1,034                    324 

   

     AdditionsXZ                     1,521                    1,090 

     Bonuses           1,521                 1,090

    

     Utilised                   (1,568)                   (380)

     Bonuses          1,568                   (380)

     Bonuses               987                   1,034 

     Closing Balance           987                1,034

notes to tHe AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents
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  2010 2009

R ‘000 R ‘000

12.  GOVERNMENT GRANT      

      Grant received – dAC           48,435               29,965 

          48,435                 29,965 

13. AMORTISED CONDITIONAL GRANTS      
      
     AMORTISED GOVERNMENT -  OTHER
     
       department of Arts and Culture 67 65
       department of Arts and Culture (special project) 5,263 7,197
       eastern Cape department of sports and Recreation            2,849                        - 

8,179                        7,262 

      AMORTISED GOVERNMENT -  NATIONAL LOTTERY      

       national Lottery – special projects            11,704                        9,516 
11,704                        9,516 

14.  OTHER INCOME      

       Gain on assets derecognised 124 -

       sundry Income                 30                     10 

                154                    10

the national Heritage Council received sundry income from the sale of bid tender documents

notes to tHe AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents
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.
2010 2009

R ‘000 R ‘000

15. INTEREST RECEIVED        
       Interest revenue           679           1,412 

       Interest revenue comprises of interest received on positive bank balances and funds invested on one day call account. Interest revenue is accrued 
       on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate over the period to maturity.   

16. OPERATING EXPENSES        
      Legal fees               197                70 

      entertainment expenses               63              147 

      Heritage projects and programmes         40,349         33,544 

      staff training and development             414              386 

      Maintenance, repairs and running costs               63                55 

        41,086         34,202 

17. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES    
      General and Administrative expenses 16,145               7,996 

      travel and Accommodation           3,996           3,643 

20,141                   11,639 

notes to tHe AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents
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    2010   2009

R ‘000 R ‘000

18. EMPLOYMENT RELATED COSTS        

     Basic salaries           8,095           6,177 

     employees contributions - Provident Fund             933              522 

     employees contributions – UIF               37                23 

     Leave provision and bonus           1,566           1,201 

     Council contributions - Provident Fund             933              522 

     Council contributions – UIF               37                23 

     Council contributions – sdL             122                63 

        11,723           8,531 

19.  OPERATING LEASE EXPENSES        

      office space             611              397 

      Parking               37                37 

            648              434 

20. FINANCE COSTS        

      Interest Paid (Bank)                 3                 3 

      Interest paid on leased assets             164                68 

            167                 71 

21. DEPRECIATION        

     Motor vehicles               24                28 

     It equipment             188                91 

     office equipment               53                42 

     Furniture and fittings             183              152 

     Leasehold improvement             128                83 

     Leased assets - office equipment             75              138 

           651              534 

22. AMORTISATION        

      Computer software             112                  26 
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    2010   2009

R ‘000 R ‘000

23. OPERATING LEASES        

           the national Heritage Council entered into a rental agreement with the Broll Property Group, effective 1 April 2005.
           the lease contract is for 60 months at a cost of R428, 839 per annum, escalating at 9% per annum.

        Lease commitments (operating leases)

        Up to one year                -                   434 

        Later than one year and not later than 5 years                -                       - 

               -                   434 

24. CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) OPERATIONS        

       deficit for the year         (5,377)               (7,272)

Adjustments for:

       depreciation               651 534 

       Amortisation on intangible assets               112 26 

       Movement in provisions and bonuses               (2) 665 

       other non-cash items (124)                31 

Changes in working capital:

       trade and other receivables
       Prepayments and advances

          1,737
        (6,426)      

(1,421) 
6

       trade and other payables (2,120)                  1,039

       deferred income/Unspent conditional grants         1,074       9,003 

       deferred income/Unspent conditional grants                   -                   (65)

(10,475)                         2,546 

notes to tHe AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents
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25.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS      

         the national Heritage Council entered into a rental agreement with the Broll Property Group, effective 1 April 2010.  the lease contract is for 24 months at a cost of R 1,024,635.56 per annum, 
         escalating at 9% per annum. the increase in the amount was due to additional office space acquired.

26.    RELATED PARTIES      

         Related party transactions

        1. Grant – Recurring expenditure (department of Arts and Culture)  48,435            29,965 

        2. Grant – special Projects (department of Arts and Culture)                  -              16,200 

        3. national Lottery distribution trust Fund          19,659             9,516 

        4. eastern Cape dept. of Arts, sports & Recreation                           2,849 -

70,943 55,681

2010   2009

R ‘000 R ‘000
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26.    RELATED PARTIES (continued)      

the national Heritage Council is a schedule 3A public entity under the national department of Arts and Culture.  the department of Arts and Culture acts on behalf of the Minister of Arts and Culture as 
executive Authority and has the responsibility to make provision for funding the activities of the Council by way of a grant listed in the estimates of national expenditure.  the national Heritage Council 
received R 48,435m as grants for the period under review.  By virtue of the fact that the national Heritage Council is a national public entity and controlled by the national government, any other con-
trolled entity of the national government is a related party.  All transactions with such entities are at arm’s length and on normal commercial terms, except where employees of national departments or 
national public entities participate in our processes and do not receive any remuneration.  the national department of Arts and Culture is the related party of the national Heritage Council.  
 
the national Lottery distribution trust Fund has made provision for funding activities/projects of the Council. the national Heritage Council received R 19,659m as grants for the period under review.  
By virtue of the fact that the national Heritage Council is a national public entity and controlled by the national government, any other controlled entity of the national government is a related party.  All 
transactions with such entities are at arm’s length and on normal commercial terms. the national Lottery distribution trust Fund is the related party of the national Heritage Council. 

the national Heritage Council received R 2,849m as a donation from eastern Cape dept. of Arts, sports & Recreation for the period under review. this was provided as a financial assistance towards the 
national Ubuntu event.  By virtue of the fact that the national Heritage Council is a national public entity and controlled by the nation government, any other controlled entity of the national govern-
ment is a related party.  All transactions with such entities and/or government departments are at arm’s length and on normal commercial terms, except where employees of national departments 
or national public entities participate in our processes and do not receive any remuneration.  the eastern Cape dept. of Arts, sports & Recreation is the related party of the national Heritage Council.    

27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS      

Liquidity risk

The National Heritage Council is only exposed to liquidity risk with regards to the payment of its trade payables.  These trade payables are all due within the short-term.  The National Heri-
tage Council manages its liquidity risk by holding sufficient cash in its bank account, supplemented by cash available in a money market account. 

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors.  The National Heritage Council only deposits cash with major banks with 
high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any other country-party.

Interest rate risk

this is a risk that fair value or future cash flows from financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in the market interest rates. Values in the financial instruments may change, thus resulting 
in both potential gains and losses. the national Heritage Council’s activities do not expose it to significant market interest rate risks. therefore, there are no procedures in place to mitigate these risks.     
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28.  MEMBERS EMOLUMENTS - NON EXECUTIVE    

2010

Names and Designations
 Honoraria 

R’000 
 Travel
R’000

Total
R’000

P n Maqubela (Chairperson) -   -   -   

R M d Ralebipi-simela (deputy Chairperson) 3 1 4 

C s Rassool 2 3 5 

L Callinicos 4 1 5 

K t ntsewa 4 2 6 

L P nkosi 1 1 

P seboni 4 2 6 

M Maboe -   -   -   

K Mkiva 1 1 

H Boshoff 3 1 4 

J Mdeni 16 1 17 

t d ntuli 8 1 9 

n Jaxa 9 2 11 

K. Mosenogi 3 15 18 

V. Billa 4 4 8 
62 33 95 
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28.  MEMBERS EMOLUMENTS - NON EXECUTIVE  (continued)

2009

Names and Designations
 Honoraria 

R’000
 Travel
R’000 

Total
R’000

P n Maqubela (Chairperson) 6 6

RMd Ralebipi-simela (deputy Chairperson) 3 - 3

C s Rassool 5 1 6

L Callinicos 6 1 7

K t ntsewa 6 1 7

L P nkosi 3 - 3

P seboni 5 1 6

M Maboe - - -

K Mkiva 3 - 3

H Boshoff 2 - 2

J Mdeni 13 3 16

t d ntuli 8 8

n Jaxa 3 3

63 7 70
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29.  MEMBERS EMOLUMENTS  (EXECUTIVE)            

2010

Names  Designation  Effective 
date 

Basic salary
R’000

Travel allowance
R’000

Annual payments
R’000

Provident fund
R’000

Total
R’000

s Mancotywa  Chief executive officer 1-Apr-09 668 169 316 155 1,308

t Ramagoma  General Manager: Heritage 1-sep-09 346 95 26 77 544

n Madilonga  Chief Financial officer 1-Apr-09 719 1 89 130 939

n Matanzima  Company secretary 1-Apr-09 461 104 66 107 738

d Goulkan  Marketing Manager 1-Apr-09 461 104 114 100 779

B Marolen  Human Resources Manager  1-Apr-09 478 86 94 100 758

s ndhlazi  Funding Manager 1-Apr-09 461 105 114 100 780

t Manetsi  Heritage Manager 1-Apr-09 461 104 120 100 785

B Mdikane  Project Manager ( Heritage Liberation Route) 1-Apr-09 550 -   47 100 697

4,605 768 986 969 7,328

2009

Names  Designation  Effective 
date 

Basic salary
R’000

Travel allowance
R’000

Annual payments
R’000

Provident fund
R’000

Total
R’000

s Mancotywa  Chief executive officer 1-Apr-08 585 150 219 127 1,081

**s Fikeni  Chief operations officer 1-Apr-08 172 20 73 16 281

**t ngetu  Chief Financial officer 1-Apr-08 205 56 80 45 386

n Madilonga  Chief Financial officer 10-nov-08 250 - - 45 295

**t Ramagoma  Company secretary 1-Apr-08 172 43 68 37 320
n Matanzima  Company secretary 1-nov-08 167 43 - 37 247
d Goulkan  Marketing Manager 1-Apr-08 403 104 30 88 625
B Marolen  Human Resources Manager  1-Apr-08 507 - 23 88 618
s ndhlazi  Funding Manager 1-Apr-08 403 104 30 88 625
t Manetsi  Heritage Manager 1-Apr-08 403 104 10 88 605

3,267 624 533 659 5,083
**Resigned during the year
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30.  COMPARISON OF RESULTS WITH THE APPROVED BUDGET   2010 

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGET SURPLUS/ DEFICIT WITH THE SURPLUS/DEFICIT IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

R ‘000

Net deficit per the statement of financial performance (5,377)

Adjusted for:

Fair value adjustments -

depreciation/Amortisation 763

Impairments recognised / reversed 10

surplus / deficit on the sale of assets (124)

Increases / decreases in provisions 1,032

net deficit per approved budget (3,696)

the budget was approved by the Council and submitted to the executive Authority in terms of section 53(1) of the PFMA.
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31. IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE  

31. 1 Details of irregular expenditure, condoned by the Accounting Authority

treasury Regulations requires that all bids exceeding R1 million rands in value not awarded through an open bid process should be reported to the relevant treasury and the Auditor General. the 
following bids awarded were not reported accordingly:

No. Incident       
Amount 2010

R’000
Amount 2009

R’000

1 Contract relates to the engagement of a sole supplier for an exhibition project held in Belgrade. 1,502            -

2. Amount was contracted using a retainer fee model for Marketing and Communications services following a bid process. 1,200 -

3. 
A service provider was engaged for three years for the event management of the south African Music Achievements (sAtMA) Awards in 2008 
through a closed bid procurement process.

2,619 2,000

TOTAL      5,321           2,000 

31. 2 Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure, condoned by the Accounting Authority

An official, who was dismissed in 2008, subsequently handed the matter to the CCMA and thereafter to a legal process, requesting compensation for unfair dismissal. whilst the nHC management consid-
ered the likelihood of the action against the institution being successful as unlikely, it, based counsels opinion and projection of legal fees and a cost benefit analysis, decided to settle the matter out of 
court with Council’s approval.

settlement amount                 71
Legal costs               164
Total                235

71
164
235
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32.  PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS.

32.1  IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

 treasury Regulations were not complied with in full when the service providers were engaged in the prior year.

Correction of error relating to non disclosure of irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure.  notes to the Annual Financial statements were adjusted while
comparative amounts were restated accordingly. the effect was as follows:

Increase in irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure                                                                                            2,000.

32.2  PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS AND OPERATING EXPENSES

Correction of error relating to understatement of operating expenses and payables from exchange transactions.

the net deficit for the year 2009 was adjusted and while comparative amounts were restated accordingly.  

the effect  of the adjustment of this error on the results of 2009 was as follows:

Increase in operating expenses                                                                                                                                 1,564

Increase in payables from exchange transaction                                                                                                 1,564

32.3  RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS AND NON-EXCHANGE 

Correction of error relating to understatement of amortised government grants (national Lottery) and receivables from exchange transactions.

 the net deficit for the year 2009 was adjusted and while comparative amounts were restated accordingly.  the effect  of the adjustment of this error on the results of 2009 was as follows:

Increase in non-exchange revenue                                                                                                                                1,564

Increase in receivables from exchange transaction                                                                                                   1,564 

R’000
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  2010   2009

R’000 R’000

Revenue               69,151            48,165

Government grant               48,435            29,965 

Amortised conditional grants  -  other                 8,179             7,262 

Amortised conditional grants  -  national Lottery               11,704             9,516 

other income                      154                  10 

Interest received                    679             1,412 

Expenses              (74,528)          (55,437)

operating expenses (As per schedule page 96)              (41,086)           (34,202)

Administrative expenses (As per schedule page 98)              (20,141)           (11,639)

employment related costs (As per schedule page 99)              (11,723)            (8,531)

operating lease expenses                   (648)               (434)

Finance costs                   (167)                 (71)

depreciation                   (651)               (534)

Amortisation                   (112)                 (26)

(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR                (5,377)            (7,272)

sCHedULes to AnnUAL FInAnCIAL stAteMents
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2010   2009

R’000 R’000

OPERATING EXPENSES      

                    197                         70 

Entertainment Expenses                       63                       147 

Heritage Projects and Programmes                 40,349                  33,544 

    Funding disbursements (Funding Unit)                   7,134                     8,446 

    Funding disbursements (Heritage Unit)                        -                             2 

    transformation Charter                         3                     1,926 

    Young Indigenous Artists                     425                          -   

    Heritage Resource Centre                     237 
                        

284 
    Policy Framework on Repatriation Heritage Resources                     438                         43 

    Ubuntu in nation building                 10,378                     6,226 

    Heritage Project expenses                        -                           21 

    Heritage strategic Programmes                     721                       329 

    Heritage engagement with sector                     420                         90 

    ICoMos department of Arts & Culture                        -                         243 

    Unsung Heroes & Heroine’s - department of Art &  Culture                     589                          -   

    sAtMA Awards - department of Arts & Culture                   2,659                     2,107 

    Heritage Liberation Route - department of Arts & Culture                   2,527                     3,244 

    early African Intellectuals                     200                       372 

    Policy Framework on Access to Heritage Resources                     349                         47 

    Policy Framework on Heritage Conservation and development                       85                       333 
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  2010   2009

OPERATING EXPENSES (continued) R’000 R’000

    Heritage and education outreach Programme Project                     807                          -   

    Youth and Heritage                        -                         270 

    sAtMA Awards - Lottery Funded                 10,586                     9,561 

    Heritage Liberation Route - Lottery Funded                     987                          -   

    Young Indigenous Artists - Lottery Funded                     128                          -   

    Unsung heroes & Heroines - Lottery Funded                         2                          -   

    Heritage special Projects                   1,502                          -   

Staff Training and Development                     414                       386 

    staff training                     329                       324 

    subscriptions                       85                         62 

Maintenance, Repairs and Running Costs                       63                         55 

    Repairs and Maintenance                       63                         55 

               41,086                  34,202 
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2010   2009

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES R’000 R’000

General and Administrative Expenses                   16,145                     7,996 

    Catering Meetings                          12                           5 

    Audit Fees                    1,192                        548 

    Advertising of Posts                          74                        217 

    Marketing & Communication                     5,828                     4,400 

    Advertising - tenders & Policies                        826                        409 

    Bank Charges                          12                         12 

    Consulting Fees                     3,351                        249 

    Courier & Postage                          78                        141 

    electricity, water & Refuse                          92                         69 

   General expenses                       10                         94 

    Honoraria                        114                        285 

    Insurance                          84                         75 

    staff welfare                        210                         50 

    Rentals - Copiers & Printers                             -                            - 

    Rentals - office equipment                          6                            - 

    Motor Vehicle expenses                          28                         14 

    Printing & stationery                        223                        117 

    Rates & taxes                          59                         40 

    Publications                        300                            - 

    Publications - Annual Report                             -                        126 

    Refuse                            2                           1 

    Recruitment Cost                            1                         57 
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2010   2009

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (continued) R’000 R’000

    workshops                     2,257                            - 

    telephone & Faxes                        369                        141 

    Cellphone Accounts                        423                        512 

    other expenses - 167

    temp staff                        264                         44 

    settlement 71 -

    It support                        259                        223 

Travel and Subsistence                      3,996                     3,643 

                 20,141                   11,639 

EMPLOYMENT RELATED COSTS

Employment related costs 11,723                     8,531 

    salaries                    10,157                     7,331 

    Leave Pay                          45                        110 

    Bonus Pay                     1,521                     1,090 

 COMMITMENTS

tenders awarded but not yet paid                    -                     3,688

Funding disbursements                          -                        2,355

                        -                     6,043 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   Quantity

PURCHASE OF OTHER WORLD CUP APPAREL         

 t – shirts                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    24 Units              14                  -

               14                - 
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notes


